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VISION 2010 and Value Creation Management
The Osaka Gas Group formulated VISION 2010 in October 1999 as its Group
management vision, and set the management principle of Value Creation to maximize
corporate value for its customers, shareholders and society.
As the first phase of VISION 2010, the medium-term business plan GATE PLAN
(fiscal 2001-fiscal 2003) set the Osaka Gas Group on the path to success. The next three-year
business plan, INNOVATION CENTENNIAL (fiscal 2004-fiscal 2006) was established as
the second phase of VISION 2010. As a first step, we were able to make significant progress
in fiscal 2004 toward achieving the final targets of INNOVATION CENTENNIAL in
fiscal 2006.
To tap business opportunities emerging in the fast-changing energy market, the Osaka Gas
Group is determined to convert itself from an energy business centered on Kansai area gas
operations to a multi-faceted energy services Group beyond its conventional service territory.
Also, in the non-energy businesses sector, the Group is constantly innovating to retool its
operations for greater speed and flexibility in order to bolster competitiveness and ensure
profitability with a core company in respective business fields.

Expansion in energy businesses by FY06.3
Sales: ¥1,000 billion

Expansion in non-energy businesses by FY06.3
Sales: ¥220 billion

Forward-Looking Statements Statements contained in this report with respect to the Osaka Gas Group’s plans, strategies and
beliefs that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements about the future performance of the Osaka Gas Group which are
based on management’s assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available to it. These forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the Osaka Gas Group’s actual results, performance or
achievements to differ materially from the expectations expressed herein.
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BUSINESS FOUNDATION OF OSAKA GAS

The Osaka Gas Group engages in the core business of supplying
natural gas and a variety of other businesses in the Kansai region,
one of Japan’s largest economic zones. Osaka Gas imports natural
gas in the form of liquefied natural gas (LNG), and distributes it to
about 6.6 million customers, or about 25% of the total number of
customers in Japan. Gas volume is equivalent to 7.76 billion cubic
meters (non-consolidated basis), or approximately 30% of the
nation’s gas consumption. Our service area covers 69 cities and 41
towns in six prefectures. The Osaka Gas Group’s service area is
steadily growing, measuring approximately 3,220 square kilometers
with gas pipelines extending about 55,300 kilometers as of March
31, 2004. (The aforementioned figures are either for Fiscal 2004 or
March 31, 2004.)
As of June 30, 2004, the Osaka Gas Group also comprises 76 energy
business sector companies, which handle liquefied petroleum gas,
electric power and district heating and cooling operations, and 43
non-energy business sector companies with operations in real estate,
restaurants and food, IT, and carbon products.

Tokyo

Osaka

Shiga Pref.

LEGEND

Trunk Line
Trunk Line (Planned)
Major Pipeline
Terminal/Plant
Service Area of Gas Companies
Outside the Osaka Gas Group

Hyogo Pref.

Lake Biwa
Otsu Gas
Kinki Trunk Line
—No.2 West Line

Kyoto Pref.
Kyoto

Toyooka Energy

Sasayama City Gas
Nishiwaki Gas

Kinki Trunk Line—No. 3 West Line

Himeji

Kinki Trunk Line
—No.2 West Line

Himeji LNG
Terminal

Hyogo Pref.

Kobe

Head Office
Port Island

Osaka

Nara Pref.

Osaka Pref.

Nabari Kintetsu Gas

Senboku LNG Terminal l

Kinki Trunk Line
—No.1 East Line
Sakurai Gas

Senboku LNG Terminal ll
Daiwa Gas

Osaka Bay
Kansai
International Airport

Fukui Pref.
Nagahama

Kinki Trunk Line
—No. 2 East Line
Kawachinagano Gas

Lake Biwa

Hikone

Gojo Gas

Wakayama Pref.
Sumoto Gas

Kusatsu
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Shiga Pref.

Note: Toyooka Energy Co., Ltd. was established from the Toyooka Office of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.
in June 2004. Sasayama City Gas Co., Ltd. was established in April 2004 after receiving
the gas operations of Sasayama City.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Years ended March 31
Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2001

2002

2003

2004

2004

¥ 951,926

¥ 973,565

¥ 947,977

¥951,324

$9,001,082

Operating income

74,055

96,676

85,974

92,096

871,379

Net income

36,097

39,418

29,685

47,065

445,319

Capital expenditures

91,233

89,938

67,107

69,779

660,232

Depreciation

92,461

88,793

82,805

89,564

847,426

1,310,976

1,243,520

1,209,627

1,199,228

11,346,664

Financial Data
Operating revenues

Total assets
Total shareholders’ equity
Number of shares issued and outstanding (thousands)

475,019

468,706

453,284

495,635

4,689,517

2,429,564

2,369,011

2,369,011

2,369,011

—

14.72

16.33

12.56

20.56

0.195

195.52

197.85

197.28

222.15

2.102

Per Share Data

U.S. Dollars

Net income (yen and U.S. dollars)
Shareholders’ equity (yen and U.S. dollars)

2001

2002

2003

2004

2004

Key Ratios
Equity ratio (%) (Note 4)

36.2%

37.7%

37.5%

41.3%

Debt ratio (%) (Note 5)

38.9%

37.4%

40.9%

38.0%

Interest coverage ratio (times) (Note 6)

9.8

13.2

14.2

12.9

Return on assets (ROA) (%) (Note 7)

2.9%

3.1%

2.4%

3.9%

Return on equity (ROE) (%) (Note 8)

8.0%

8.4%

6.4%

9.9%

—
—
—
—
—

Operating Data
Gas sales by volume (million m3)

7,580

7,479

7,701

7,779

Number of meters installed (thousands)

6,401

6,484

6,579

6,650

15,160

14,878

15,020

15,276

Number of employees

—
—
—

Notes:
1. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars at ¥105.69 = US$1, the approximate exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2004.
2. The number of consolidated companies was 35 in fiscal 2001, 43 in fiscal 2002, 56 in fiscal 2003 and 77 in fiscal 2004.
3. The number of employees includes part-time workers, and excludes those loaned to other organizations.
4. Equity ratio = shareholders’ equity/total assets (end of period)
5. Debt ratio = interest-bearing debt/total assets (end of period)
6. Interest coverage ratio = (operating income + interest and dividends received)/interest expenses
7. Return on assets (ROA) = net income/total assets (average)
8. Return on equity (ROE) = net income/shareholders’ equity (average)
9. Amounts of less than one million yen and one thousand U.S. dollars have been omitted. (Figures have been rounded from page 40.)
10. All gas sales volume shown is at the calorific value of 45 MJ per cubic meter.
11. Gas sales by volume and number of meters installed are shown on a consolidated basis due to expansion in the scope of consolidation from fiscal 2003.

Gas Sales by Volume

Operating Revenues

(Millions of m3)

(Millions of Yen)

Net Income Per Share (EPS) and
Shareholders’ Equity Per Share (BPS)
(Yen)
25

250

951,324

947,977

973,565

849,225

951,926

7,779

7,479

7,701

7,326

7,580

(left scale)

222.15
200

195.52

197.28
20.56

197.85
150

20

(right scale)

172.95

15

16.33
14.72
100

10.94

12.56

5

50

0

0

’00.3 ’01.3 ’02.3 ’03.3 ’04.3

’00.3 ’01.3 ’02.3 ’03.3 ’04.3
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’00.3 ’01.3 ’02.3 ’03.3 ’04.3
Shareholders’ Equity Per Share (BPS)
Net Income Per Share (EPS)
(Calculated based on the average number of shares
outstanding, excluding treasury stock, during the term.)
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AT A GLANCE

Business Structure of Osaka Gas Group
The Osaka Gas Group divides its operations into two business segments. The first segment is the energy business,
which integrates the natural gas business, LPG, electric power and other energy-related business, and gas appliances and house-pipe installation business. The second segment is the non-energy business, which includes the real
estate business and other businesses. Osaka Gas also classifies its operations under the G8 Organization, which
comprises five business divisions and seven core companies. The Osaka Gas Group promotes independent and selfSegment Name

Business Outline

Gas Business
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd., Nabari Kintetsu Gas Co., Ltd., Sasayama City Gas Co., Ltd. and Toyooka Energy Co.,
Ltd. manufacture, supply and sell natural gas. The gas business procures, transports, stores and produces
natural gas, and distributes it through pipelines to customers.

LPG, Electricity and Other Energies
The Liquid Gas Group and the Nissho Petroleum Gas Corporation Group are in charge of the industrial and
fuel gas businesses. Gas and Power Co., Ltd., Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. and Nakayama
Nagoya Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. are engaged in the wholesaling business of electricity generation.
Gas and Power Investment Co., Ltd. handles district heating and cooling operations. Cogeneration Technology Service Co., Ltd. designs, installs, sells and provides services for cogeneration systems.

Gas Appliances and House-Pipe Installation
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd., Enetech Kyoto Co., Ltd., Hearts Co., Ltd. and other companies sell gas appliances.
Osaka Gas provides installation services for indoor gas pipes at customers. Kinpai Co., Ltd. (renamed from
Kinki Piping) performs installation work of indoor and outdoor gas pipes under contract with Osaka Gas.
In October 2003, Kinki Piping Co., Ltd. was spun off into Kinpai Corporation.

Real Estate
Urbanex Co., Ltd., OG Capital Co., Ltd. and other companies are engaged in real estate development,
management and personnel services. Kyoto Research Park Co., Ltd. manages the research park, promotes
exchange between the industrial academic fields and fosters the development of venture companies. OSC
Engineering Co., Ltd. provides building maintenance and other services.

Others
Kinrei Co., Ltd. manufactures and sells frozen foods and operates restaurant chains and other food service
businesses. OGIS Research Institute Co., Ltd. and other companies provide a wide spectrum of information
processing services using computers. Osaka Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd. manufactures and sells carbon materials
and fine materials, and sells chemical products. The Osaka Gas Group's other subsidiaries are engaged in
engineering, sale of housing equipment, security and disaster prevention services and other businesses.
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supporting management mainly through the core companies in the G8 Organization, and makes every effort to
improve the corporate value of the Group by expanding growth businesses through selection and concentration and
quickly realizing positive SVA* at affiliated companies.
*SVA = NOPAT - (interest-bearing liabilities + shareholders’ equity) x WACC
NOPAT (Net operating profit after taxes) = Before-tax income before deduction of interest paid x (1- effective tax rate)

Percentage of Operating Revenues (Note 1)

Percentage of Operating Income (Note 1)

Principal Management Results

G8 Group Interaction
(Millions of Yen, %)

’04.3

Gas Business
56.3%

Gas Business
64.1%

Operating Revenues
Operating Income
Total assets
at end of year
Return on Assets
(ROA) (%) (Note 2)
Operating Income
Margin

’03.3

Rate of change

¥573,903

¥571,027

58,044

57,047

+0.5%
+1.7

676,781

717,199

- 5.6

8.3%

—

—

10.1%

9.9%

—
(Millions of Yen, %)

Operating Revenues
Operating Income

LPG, Electricity
and Other Energies 13.0%

LPG, Electricity
and Other Energies 17.4%

Total assets
at end of year
Return on Assets
(ROA) (%) (Note 2)
Operating Income
Margin

’03.3

Rate of change

¥132,169

¥119,607

+10.5%

15,740

13,166

+19.6

172,638

159,450

+ 8.3

9.5%

—

—

11.9%

11.0%

—

G1 Osaka Gas and Gas Group

’04.3

G2
Liquid Gas
Group

G3
NIPG Group

(Millions of Yen, %)

’04.3

Operating Revenues
Gas Appliances and
House-Pipe Installation 14.1%

Gas Appliances and
House-Pipe Installation 2.5%

Operating Income
Total assets
at end of year
Return on Assets
(ROA) (%) (Note 2)
Operating Income
Margin

’03.3

Rate of change

¥143,561

¥151,754

- 5.4%

2,231

1,940

+15.0

69,144

79,852

- 13.4

3.0%

—

1.5%

1.2%

—
—
(Millions of Yen, %)

’04.3

Operating Income
Real Estate 3.3%

Real Estate 7.8%

Total assets
at end of year
Return on Assets
(ROA) (%) (Note 2)
Operating Income
Margin

Rate of change

¥ 33,898

¥ 33,469

+ 1.3%

7,077

6,383

+10.9

102,526

102,826

- 0.3

6.9%

—

—

20.8%

19.0%

—
(Millions of Yen, %)

’04.3

G8
OG Capital
Group

G5 Kinrei Group

Rate of change

¥136,014

¥132,185

+ 2.9%

7,485

6,322

+18.4

115,157

128,501

- 10.4

Return on Assets
(ROA) (%) (Note 2)

6.1%

—

—

G7 Osaka Gas
Chemicals Group

Operating Income
Margin

5.5%

4.7%

—

G8 OG Capital Group

Operating Income
Others 8.2%

G1
Osaka Gas and
Gas Group

’03.3

Operating Revenues

Others 13.3%

G4 Urbanex Group

Operating Revenues

’03.3

Total assets
at end of year

G6 OGIS-RI Group

Notes: 1. Data are shown on a consolidated basis.
2. ROA is only shown for fiscal 2004 due to a change in segment classifications from fiscal 2004.
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▼

Consolidated gas sales volume in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004,
edged up 1.0% year over the previous year to 7,779 million cubic meters.

▼

Consolidated operating income rose 7.1% to ¥92 billion.

▼

Management for a New Era of Value Creation

Consolidated net income per share increased 63.5% to ¥20.6.

Results of FY04.3 (Millions of yen, %)

Differences

’04.3

951,324

+3,347

Operating income

85,974

92,096

+6,122

Ordinary profit

65,079

81,446

+16,367

Net income

29,685

47,065

+17,380

ROA

2.4%

3.9%

+1.5

ROE

6.4%

9.9%

+3.5

23,712

73,242

+49,530

25

23.5

’03.3

947,977

Operating revenues

24.8

(Consolidated)

Consolidated SVA (Billions of yen)

20

15

13.1

5

3.1

Free cash flow

10

11.1

eation

MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

’01.3

’02.3

’03.3

’04.3

’05.3
(Planned)

■ Consolidated Results for Fiscal 2004
Fiscal 2004, ended March 31, 2004, was the year we kicked off INNOVATION CENTENNIAL,
our new three-year medium-term business plan that picks up where the GATE PLAN left off on the
path toward realizing VISION 2010, under a new organizational structure.
The Company made aggressive efforts to stimulate demand with its ECOWILL gas cogeneration
system for homes, hot water floor heating systems, cogeneration systems for industrial and commercial
use, and air-conditioning systems. As a result, gas sales volume reached 7,779 million cubic meters, an
increase of 1.0% from the previous fiscal year, despite the adverse affects of an unseasonably cool
summer and warm winter on air and water temperatures.
Net sales rose 0.4% to ¥951.3 billion compared with the previous fiscal year, reflecting increased gas
sales volume. During the fiscal year under review, Osaka Gas recorded under operating expenses the
disposal costs related to the cancellation of a new LNG terminal project in Tsuruga, but efforts to slash
costs across all businesses resulted in lower operating expenses overall. In addition, the earnings of
consolidated subsidiaries were favorable, leading to an increase of 7.1% in operating income to ¥92.0
billion compared with the previous fiscal year. In fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a loss on writedown of investment securities under other expenses, and extraordinary losses on lump-sum benefits for
early retirement. In fiscal 2004, however, Osaka Gas did not incur these onetime charges. As a result,
ordinary profit increased 25.1% to ¥81.4 billion and net income climbed 58.5% to ¥47.0 billion.
The ratio of consolidated to non-consolidated operating income improved to 1.37.
Our performance for fiscal 2004 reflects the selection and concentration of operations with regard
to capital costs and the creation of a strategic business portfolio.
■ Outcome of SVA Management through Selection and Concentration
In the Osaka Gas Group, shareholders’ value added (SVA) is used as a profitability benchmark for
evaluating the performance of each internal division and Group companies. Osaka Gas makes concerted efforts to maximize SVA by taking an aggressive investment approach to business fields that
enhance SVA. In addition, affiliated companies with negative SVA become the focus of restructuring
measures, including withdrawal, except under special circumstances, such as a brief operational period
after business launch.
In fiscal 2004, the Company did not undertake any large-scale business restructuring projects.
Osaka Gas did, however, simultaneously streamline negative SVA businesses until fiscal 2003, includ7

Market Growth and Earnings Potential by Business Field

Aims of INNOVATION CENTENNIAL

Ratio of ordinary profit to sales
16.0%

Shift from a gas-based business to a multi energy
business that includes the electricity business

’04.3
14.0%

’05.3

’03.3
12.0%

Real Estate (G4)

Shift from local to national operations
— wide-area energy business development

10.0%

’04.3
8.0%

Gas, Electricity and Energy Service (G1)

’04.3
’05.3

6.0%

’05.3

Shift to a value-chain-based business model

’03.3

4.0%

’03.3

’05.3

’03.3 ’04.3
Others (G5,6,7,8)

2.0%

Change in Sales
(’02.3 results = 100)

LPG (G2,3)
0.0% 0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

1.25

1.30

1.35

Engage in Group SVA management focused on
each business division and core Group company

1.40

Note: Figures are the total of affiliated companies, excluding Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and companies that were removed
from consolidation comprising Harman Co., Ltd., Harman Precision Co., Ltd. and OG Royal Co., Ltd. These
figures do not correspond to segment classifications, as they include non-consolidated affiliated companies
and are combined to closely resemble the G8 classifications used in accounting for the Osaka Gas Group. The
size of the bubble shows the scale of sales.

ing portions of the gas equipment production and sales business, portions of real estate operations and
the home improvement center business. These measures to streamline negative SVA businesses have
improved SVA by approximately ¥2.1 billion annually.
Moreover, Osaka Gas has used net present value (NPV) as a common standard for evaluating
investment across the Group. Following strict guidelines, the Company is investing in growth businesses primarily in the energy business sector. Up until fiscal 2003, Osaka Gas has acquired the Nissho
Petroleum Gas Corporation (NIPG) group, Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. and
Nakayama Nagoya Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas acquired Daiya
Nensho Co., Ltd., an LPG provider in Mie Prefecture. These acquisitions and investments in growth
businesses contributed approximately ¥0.9 billion to SVA in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.
■ Business Portfolio
The main objectives of Osaka Gas Group’s business portfolio strategy are to ensure high profitability
based on quantitative synergies, to methodically pursue selection and concentration of operations
based on SVA, and to promote self-sustainability at core companies. Based on these objectives, the
Osaka Gas Group is developing mutually beneficial operations centered on businesses that have
synergies with the energy business. For example, Osaka Gas Security Service Co., Ltd. provides
condominium management and security services while Osaka Gas markets gas equipment to condominiums.
The above figure shows market growth potential and earnings potential on an annual basis by
business field. Sales and profitability continue to steadily improve in each business field. In the gas,
electricity and heat supply field in particular, sales are growing significantly from acquisitions of
wholesale power businesses and the expansion of energy services outside our operating area.
■ Overview of INNOVATION CENTENNIAL Medium-Term Business Plan
In October 1999, the Osaka Gas Group formulated the VISION 2010 as the Group’s management
vision for the 21st century. The medium-term management plan GATE PLAN extending from fiscal
2001 to fiscal 2003 was created as the first phase of VISION 2010. We achieved the final year targets
of the GATE PLAN one year ahead of schedule. In January 2003, the Company formulated INNOVATION CENTENNIAL as a new medium-term management plan beginning in fiscal 2004 and
ending in fiscal 2006 for the second phase of VISION 2010. Under INNOVATION CENTEN8

Growth Strategy under Competition

Forecast of Consolidated Operating Income

Values express total annual revenue
(Billions of Yen)

Medium-term management plan

’04.3

’05.3

’06.3

’11.3

(Billions of Yen)
120

Non-energy business

Non-residential gas
and appliance sales

270

300

Area expansion

20

Small-scale power plants,
external power procurement and
acquisition of IPPs

140

45

¥16.5 billion

Increase of gas sales
¥10 billion

80

Full scale electricity business
with own large power plants

170
Sale of LPG and cogeneration
installations beyond OG’s gas
franchise area

120

92.0

Electricity business

90

96.5

100

Gas sales increase through conventional
cogeneration gas demand and
new scheme cogeneration for power retail

¥4 billion

¥2.5 billion

110

113.0

Energy business

70
60
50

’04.3

’05.3

’06.3

(Planned)

(Planned)

NIAL, we have set three targets for increasing corporate value, namely the creation of “value for
shareholders,” “value for customers,” and “value for society.” Our targets for “value for shareholders”
aim to achieve consolidated SVA of ¥35.0 billion, ordinary profit of ¥100 billion and net income of
¥57.5 billion in fiscal 2006.
■ Achievements in Fiscal 2004 and Management Targets for Fiscal 2005
Fiscal 2004 was the first year of the medium-term management plan INNOVATION CENTENNIAL. For the fiscal year under review, although net sales finished lower than our initial estimates,
operating income, ordinary profit and net income surpassed our initial expectations. Return on equity
(ROE) has improved to almost 10%, and net income per share has crossed the ¥20 mark.
We have set challenging management targets for fiscal 2005, the second year of INNOVATION
CENTENNIAL, that will place us within reach of targets for fiscal 2006. Osaka Gas plans to record
losses on valuation of land in accordance with the early adoption of impairment accounting. As a
result, we expect net income to decline year on year in fiscal 2005. Even with these special factors,
Osaka Gas believes that the final targets of the medium-term management plan will be within reach if
fiscal 2005 targets are achieved.
Osaka Gas believes it offers competitive gas rates compared with the prices of rival energy types,
and does not plan to revise gas rate schedules at this time. Should the price of competing energy types
decline further, Osaka Gas plans to compensate with additional cost reduction measures in order to
achieve initial profit targets.
■ Outlook for Achieving Final Targets in Fiscal 2006
Osaka Gas aims to achieve consolidated operating income of ¥113.0 billion in fiscal 2006, requiring
an additional ¥16.5 billion in operating income in excess of the fiscal 2005 target of ¥96.5 billion. For
this additional amount, Osaka Gas expects profits to increase by approximately ¥10.0 billion from
higher gas sales for mainly industrial applications, by ¥2.5 billion in electricity, LPG and other energyrelated businesses, and ¥4.0 billion from non-energy businesses.
■ Corporate Governance and Compliance
Osaka Gas is obligated to adopt a corporate management structure based on corporate governance and
legal compliance. Only by adopting such a management structure can we expect to carry out our
9

Principal Management Targets and Results

Operating Data

(Unit: Billions of Yen, %)
’04.3
Forecast
Result

(Consolidated)

’05.3
Forecast

35.0

(Consolidated)

’04.3
Forecast
Result

’05.3
Forecast

’06.3
Target

22.0

24.8

Operating revenues

966.0

951.3

Operating income

84.5

92.0

96.5

113.0

Total assets (Billions of Yen)

Ordinary profit

77.5

81.4

94.0

100.0

Interest-bearing debt (Billions of Yen)

512.2

455.7

456.0

575.0

Net income

42.5

47.0

46.0

57.5

Capital expenditure (Billions of Yen)

80.9

69.7

96.8

85.5

Free cash flows

SVA

23.5

’06.3
Target

989.0 1,090.0

Non-consolidated gas sales (Million m3) 7,748

7,766

8,020

8,524

38.8

41.3

42.6

42.1

Equity ratio (%)

1,250.7 1,199.2 1,201.5 1,416.5

56.5

73.2

72.1

85.0

Number of employees

ROE (%)

9.0

9.9

9.2

10.0

Number of consolidated companies

76

77

109

102

ROA (%)

3.4

3.9

3.9

4.1

Crude oil price ($/bbl)

25.0

29.4

28.0

25.0

18.5

20.6

20.6

25.0

Exchange rates (yen/$)

125.0

113.2

110

125.0

EPS (yen/share)

14,400 14,444 16,050 14,580

Notes: 1.Total assets, interest-bearing debt and personnel as of March 31
2.The numerators of both ROA and ROE are net income after tax; the denominators are the average of the levels at the beginning and end of the applicable period.
The numerator for ROE and ROA is net income, and the denominator is the average during the fiscal year.
3.Fiscal 2006 targets are those announced in January 2003.

business activities with the full confidence and support of equity markets and society at large and, as a
result, maximize our corporate value.
Osaka Gas has expanded the authority of business and division managers by reducing the number
of directors and through reorganization in order to improve maneuverability in business execution. To
verify the legality and appropriateness of its business activities from an external standpoint, the
Company has established a management advisory committee and incorporated external auditors into
its organization.
In compliance, Osaka Gas formulated the Osaka Gas Group Code of Conduct, and is making
every effort to apply the code in every facet of its business activities to instill a law-abiding mindset
among employees. The Company established a compliance committee and appointed compliance
officers to various offices. Moreover, the Company set up a compliance department for providing
dedicated support to compliance activities, and a compliance desk as a way for handling internal
reports and consultations.
■ Risk Management
For those risks associated with other than governance and compliance, the Osaka Gas Group identifies risk categories, determines risk levels and takes appropriate countermeasures. The Company’s
main business risks include: demand and price fluctuations resulting from competition in the energy
sector; demand fluctuations resulting from weather conditions, atmosphere and water temperatures;
changes in sales and material costs due to fluctuations in crude oil prices and foreign exchange rates;
and changes in interest expense due to fluctuations in interest rates. To counter risks from competition
in the energy sector, Osaka Gas examines and implements comprehensive measures such as strengthening marketing capabilities and reducing costs. To hedge against the other risks mentioned above,
after quantitatively evaluating risk levels, Osaka Gas uses financial tools such as derivatives and
options to reduce its risk exposure.
■ Capital and Dividend Policies
Osaka Gas increased cash dividends by ¥1 per share in fiscal 2002, and has maintained annual dividends of ¥6 per share since then. Historically, the Company has emphasized stability and
sustainability in its dividend policy. Recently, however, investor demands have become more complex.
Under these circumstances, Osaka Gas will take a varied approach to determining the optimal divi10

Application of Consolidated Free Cash Flows

FY04.3-06.3 Application of Consolidated Free Cash Flows and Additional Borrowings
Investment for growth ¥236.5 billion
Investment in trunk lines ¥18 billion

Purpose of
Spending

Investment for maintenance of regular operations

¥197 billion

Upstream investment ¥17.5 billion
(Gas fields, LNG tankers)

Investment in the
Dividends electricity
business

¥42 billion

¥81 billion

Special investment budget

¥120 billion

Operating cash flows

0

100

Additional
borrowings

Consolidated FCF

Portion of investment for maintenance
of regular operations ¥197 billion

Funds

¥212 billion
200

300

¥66.5 billion
400

500 Billions of yen

dend policy based on operating conditions at that time. In answering the question of how the Company intends to improve shareholder value with retained earnings, Osaka Gas will flexibly adopt
measures that emphasize sustainable and stable cash dividends, increase growth potential through
investment in business expected to provide high returns, and increase profits per share through the
acquisition of treasury stock.
Compared with other companies in the same industry, Osaka Gas has a large number of outstanding shares relative to its market capitalization. Accordingly, we believe that reducing the number of
outstanding shares and improving profits per share will contribute to increasing shareholder value, and
have positioned the acquisition of treasury stock as an important measure for improving shareholder
value. Our cash flow strategy prioritizes investment in new businesses such as electric power generation over the medium term. However, there are cases where excessive cash is generated during a fiscal
year, and this cash is earmarked for the acquisition of treasury stock after investment in new businesses.
■ In Closing
Osaka Gas will celebrate its 100th anniversary in October 2005. The Osaka Gas Group aims to
achieve sustainable development as a sound group of companies in its new century of operations by
pursuing innovation in the energy and non-energy businesses. Moreover, we aim to provide one-stop
energy services while increasing management flexibility and responding precisely to changes in the
operating environment. At the same time, we are striving to be a group of companies that are the
preferred choice of customers by building competitive advantages in cost, efficiency, environmental
management, safety and services.
We ask for your continued support and understanding as we pursue these endeavors.

Akio Nomura, Chairman

Hirofumi Shibano, President
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

While adhering to our principle of “Value Creation
Management,” to maximize “value for our customers,” “value for our shareholders,” and “value for
society,” we are implementing reforms in our
management structure to promptly cope with the
changing business environment, strengthen corporate competitiveness and ensure sound business
management.
At Osaka Gas, our directors participate in
management meetings to share their professional
views on strategic matters in line with specific
internal rules, and decisions are made on those
matters through in-depth deliberations at the Board
of Directors meetings. The Board of Directors
reviews important matters that affect the entire
Group, including its subsidiaries and affiliates, and is
responsible for making correct and quick decisions
and strengthening oversight functions.
In June 2003, a new internal auditor system was
adopted at the annual general meeting of shareholders
to satisfy the revised requirement that at least half of
the corporate auditors should be nonemployee
auditors, in accordance with the “Law Revising the
Law Concerning Special Measures to the Commercial Code with Respect to Audit, etc. of Corporations (Kabushiki Kaisha) (2001, Law 149).” The
inclusion of nonemployee auditors, independent
from the control of the Board of Directors, has
strengthened the ability of Osaka Gas to oversee the

appropriateness and legality of the directors’ performance. In addition, an Auditors’ Office comprised of
full-time staff members not under the direct control
of the directors has been established to improve the
audit system. The two nonemployee auditors
appointed in the shareholders’ general meeting do
not have any special personal, capital, or business
relationship with Osaka Gas, nor do they have any
other interest in the Company, thus preserving their
impartiality.
The Osaka Gas Group implemented organizational reforms in April 2003 to strengthen its
managerial structure. As part of those reforms, an
inspector was appointed within each business
division to improve internal audit and oversight
functions, while more authority was transferred to
each division.
Moreover, the Osaka Gas Group Code of Corporate Conduct was established to achieve strict compliance with all applicable legal requirements by all the
members of the Osaka Gas Group, including the
directors and employees of Osaka Gas and its subsidiaries. To enhance the ability of the Group to ensure
that its business activities comply with applicable laws,
in 2003, we established the Compliance Committee,
whose membership includes outside specialists, and
also reorganized the compliance office, which had
been a section within a unit, into the Compliance
Department, an independent unit.

The Osaka Gas Group’s Compliance Structure
President of Osaka Gas
Compliance Committee
Role: Identify, deliberate and implement compliance
measures for the Osaka Gas Group
Head of committee

Director in charge of compliance

Committee members Head of Administration and General Affairs Division,
business unit managers, head of personnel department,
head of auditing department, head of legal department,
head of compliance department, observers, auditors,
union representatives and attorneys

Compliance Division
Role: • Compliance Committee business office
• Compliance training events and information disclosure
• Compliance consultation and reporting

Organizations and Affiliate Companies
Compliance Promoters
Role: • Compliance activity planning and promotion
• Training event planning and implementation
• Compliance guidance services
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DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS (As of June 29, 2004)

(From left) Yukihiro Endo, Hidetoshi Nakatani, Hirofumi Shibano, Akio Nomura, Yuji Matsumura, Seishiro Yoshioka, Zenzo Ideta

Chairman

Executive Vice Presidents

Managing Directors

Directors

Corporate Auditors

Akio Nomura

Yuji Matsumura
Hidetoshi Nakatani
Seishiro Yoshioka

Hiroshi Yokokawa
Takashi Nabari
Chiaki Gomi
Hideaki Nagata
Katsumi Makino

Yoichi Higuchi
Hiroshi Ozaki
Hiroshi Nishiura
Tsuneo Mitsuda
Masateru Sato
Masao Nishino
Masashi Kuroda
Yuichi Funahashi
Akira Narumiya

Tamotsu Okajima
Akio Wada

President

Hirofumi Shibano
Senior Managing Directors

Yukihiro Endo
Zenzo Ideta

Auditors

Reisuke Shimada
Junjiro Kanamori
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“The lower barriers of market entry provide
Osaka Gas with an opportunity to expand its
energy business. Osaka Gas remains proactive in
turning challenges resulting from deregulation
into business opportunities based on its strategy
of shifting to multiple energy services and
geographically expanding operations.”

Deregulation in the Electricity and Gas Sectors
Background to Deregulation and Future Direction
Electricity Sector
Scope of Liberalization Share of national
sales volume

Gas Sector
Main points

Scope of Liberalization

Share of national
sales volume

Main points

1996

—

—

Introduction of independent power
producer (IPP) and fuel cost
adjustment system

More than
2,000,000 m3 per year

36%

Introduction of third party access
to pipelines and fuel cost
adjustment system

2000

More than 2MW

26%

Creation of power producer and
supplier (PPS) system

More than
1,000,000 m3 per year

40%

Third party access to pipelines
made mandatory (major four
companies)

2004

More than 0.5MW

40%

Abolishment of transfer supply fees

More than
500,000 m3 per year

44%

Third party access to pipelines
made mandatory

2005

More than 0.05MW

63%

Creation of wholesale power market
More than
100,000 m3 per year

50%

2007

Source: Denki Shimbun’s “Description of Electric Power Liberalization and New Systems” and 2002 Urban Thermal Energy Committee materials
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ENERGY BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Characteristics of the Japanese Gas Industry
While there are more than 200 gas companies in Japan, the market is dominated by a few major gas
suppliers, such as Osaka Gas, which by itself accounts for approximately 30% of total gas sales
volume in Japan. The four top gas suppliers control approximately 80% of the domestic market.
Almost all of Japan’s natural gas is imported from overseas in the form of LNG.
Each of the major gas companies supply gas through proprietary pipeline networks in their own
service areas. In contrast to other countries, Japan does not have any gas distribution trunk lines
interlinked nationally or internationally.
Special Qualities of Natural Gas
1) Natural gas reserves are more abundant than those of crude oil and, unlike crude oil, are not
concentrated in specific geographical locations.
2) Compared to other fossil fuels, natural gas has a less adverse impact on the environment.
From this standpoint, demand for natural gas is expected to increase in the future as the preferred
fuel for the 21st century.
The Osaka Gas Group mainly handles energy resources that are friendlier to the environment,
giving it an advantage in business development.
Osaka Gas
in Japanese Gas Market
Osaka Gas

29%

Reserve-Production Ratio
of Natural Gas and Oil

Emissions of Combustion Product by Fossil Fuel (Coal = 100)

(Number of Years)

CO2

SOx

NOx

Coal

100

100

100

Oil

80

68

71

Natural gas

57

0

20-37

65
51

Source: Field test on technology for measuring air pollution caused by
thermal power plants Report (1990.3 The Institute of Applied Energy)
IEA (International Energy Agency) Natural Gas Prospects (1986)

Natural gas
Sales volume from April 2003 to March 2004
Source: The Japan Gas Association Web site

Oil

Source: Oil and Gas Journal
2003/12, 2004/3

150MW power plant at Torishima Energy Center (Osaka) that uses natural gas as fuel
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GAS MARKETING

Being able to use energy as effectively as possible is
important for the environment and economy. We will
maintain our competitive edge against other types of
energy by providing an optimal energy solutions
from the customers’ viewpoint.

Gas power generation and hot water
floor heating system ECOWILL

Residential Market
In fiscal 2004, sales took off for the residential gas engine cogeneration system ECOWILL.
ECOWILL is a revolutionary new product that generates electricity while supplying hot water
and heating. First-year sales totaled 3,000 units, far surpassing our target for 2,000 units, as
customers embraced ECOWILL for its high efficiency and convenience in controlling overall
energy costs.
The Osaka Gas Group concentrated its efforts on expanding sales of fan heaters and hot
water floor heating systems, which contributed considerably to higher residential gas sales.
Unlike oil heaters which requires refueling, fan heaters are used in more than 30% of the
households in our service area. Replacement demand is increasing from customers who have
already purchased fan heaters, and new demand is rising as customers switch from heating
equipment that use other types of fuel.
Sales are steadily expanding for our hot water floor heating systems, which are popular for
providing heat from a person’s feet upward and keeping room air clean. Hot water floor heating
systems have become so popular that they are often included as standard features in newly
constructed housing complexes such as condominiums. In addition to the new housing market,
the Osaka Gas Group is encouraging the further proliferation of hot water floor heating
systems by proposing their introduction along with other remodeling plans to the approximately six million homes in the Kansai region.

Gas Sales by Volume (Non-consolidated, including Toyooka area)

Compound Annual Growth Rate
from ’02.3 to ’06.3: 3.2%

(Million m3 • 45MJ/ m3)

9,000
8,000
7,000

8,475
7,766

7,687

340
632

8,024

135
504

168
550

182
559

308
601

3,630

3,686

3,734

3,738

965

986

985

1,017

1,047

2,245

2,298

2,304

2,360

2,380

’02.3

’03.3

’04.3

’05.3

7,479

6,000
5,000

4,076

4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
0

Residential
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Commercial

Industrial

Public and Medical

Planned
Wholesale

’06.3

Regeneburners enable reductions in energy consumption of
35-50% using the accumulated heat burning method.

Non-Residential Regulated Markets
Natural gas plays a crucial role as the basic energy source for a wide variety of industry, including steel, metals, chemicals and machinery. Natural gas compares favorably to other primary
energies in terms of energy conservation, space conservation and cleanliness. Demand for
natural gas is increasing as Osaka Gas promotes detailed solution marketing activities based on
a firm grasp of customer needs and its strong technologies. Natural gas is increasingly used for
such purposes as cooling processes and clean rooms, in addition to thermal energy for furnaces
and boilers. Able to generate both heat and electricity simultaneously, cogeneration systems
realize substantial energy savings in factory operations, and their utilization is increasing as
needs grow for distributed power sources in society.
Gas sales to the commercial, public and medical sectors are increasing due mainly to the use
of gas air conditioners and cogeneration systems. Gas absorption air-conditioning systems have
become the dominant technology for air-conditioning in large buildings, while gas heat pump
air-conditioning systems are becoming increasingly popular in small and medium-sized
buildings because of their convenience. The air-conditioning system Quick Multi, which we
released in fiscal 2003, can be installed using existing cooling ducts, and has contributed
significantly to sales along with the upgrading of air-conditioning systems in old office buildings. Customers both large and small deploy cogeneration systems, ranging from major commercial facilities to hospitals, hotels and retail stores. Our Gene-Light Series of compact
9.8kW cogeneration systems for small and medium-sized office buildings and shops has been
very popular since its launch in fiscal 1999. To date, more than 1,000 customers have installed
the Gene-Light Series.

Sales Projection for ECOWILL
(Thousands of Units)

Sales Volume of Residential
Gas Appliances
(Thousands of Units)

188

188

2,000

90

600

94
300

Stock capacity

3.2

64
72
61

124

93

2,357

94

2,582

166
Gas floor heaters

2,765

173

2,941

177 172

830

787
740

3,082

197
178

Conversion to gas sales 706
664
3,000
620
566

3,279

8.0

Fan heaters

(Thousand RTs, Million m3)

3,459

230

Total Installed Air-Conditioning Capacity

81

1,000

Bathroom heater-driers

0

’03.3

’04.3

’05.3 Planned

’00.3 ’01.3 ’02.3 ’03.3 ’04.3 ’05.3 Planned
Note: 1. Controller base for gas floor heaters
2. Bathroom heater-driers feature drying
and misting

’00.3 ’01.3 ’02.3 ’03.3 ’04.3 ’05.3 ’06.3
Planned
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NON-REGULATED ENERGY BUSINESS

“Our energy consulting capabilities, backed by technological know-how,
are one of the greatest strengths of Osaka Gas to stimulate customer
demand and provide an optimal combination of products and systems
developed to solve a specific problem.’’

Osaka Gas acquired IPP facilities in Texas, U.S.A.

Growing Gas Sales
In the gas business, the non-regulated sector has expanded to encompass sales volume of more than
500,000 cubic meters per year from April 2004. In this sector, the Osaka Gas Group is promoting
cogeneration systems as a key product for expanding operations.
What is a Cogeneration System?
Installed on location at the customer, cogeneration systems recover heat emitted from power generation and use it for air conditioning and thermal applications. Energy usage efficiency improves
approximately 70-80% with the use of cogeneration systems, as exhaust heat can be effectively utilized
and there is minimal transmission loss because electricity is generated at the customer’s location.
Strengths of Osaka Gas Cogeneration Systems
1) Osaka Gas develops highly efficient cogeneration systems. Compared with the average efficiency of
approximately 40% at existing thermal power plants, our advanced cogeneration systems achieve a
power generation efficiency of around 43%. As a result, there are an increasing number of customers that enjoy the cost benefits of introducing Osaka Gas cogeneration systems.
2) Our maintenance system, which includes the remote observation system Echo Line, leads the
industry in service and maintenance quality.
3) Osaka Gas offers various financing schemes that answer customer needs such as for not wanting to
own capital assets, and wanting to preset rate fluctuations to changes in fuel costs.
4) For franchise chain owners with stores located outside our service area, we meet customer needs
through our subsidiary Cogen Techno Service Co., Ltd., which is in charge of cogeneration
operations outside our service area.
5) In addition to natural gas as a fuel, Osaka Gas also provides a wide variety of cogeneration systems,
including engines that use biogas as fuel as well as agricultural systems that supply CO2 to plants.
Through these strengths, Osaka Gas has delivered cogeneration systems with a total generation
capacity of approximately 1,200MW.
General View of Natural Gas Cogeneration
Power Generation System (Traditional)

Total Installed Cogeneration Systems
(Stock capacity: thousand RT
Conversion to gas sales: million m3)

Cogeneration System

1,900

Thermal power generation
Electric power plant

1,619

100

Lost energy

56
Waste heat

20
Energy Use

40%

Energy Use

35

50 Efficiently usable

1,166

1,366 1,213

Electric
energy

40

956

4

Electric
Energy

25

875

100

Primary energy
(natural gas)

1,057 1,052

1,274

Pipeline
40

Primary energy
(petroleum oil, natural gas, coal)

1,176 1,121

Conversion
to gas sales

Cogen Techno Service

1,580

1,495
1,402

1,695 1,430

Gas plant

2,100

1,880

Cogeneration

Osaka Gas

Stock capacity

waste heat

30

Waste heat

70 80%

’00.3

’01.3

’02.3

’03.3

’04.3

’05.3

’06.3

Planned

Note: Power generation efficiency is calculated using fiscal 1999 results (LHV standard).
Source: The Japan Gas Association “Gas Cogeneration System”
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Note: 1. Stock volume conversion is 1kW = about 1.32 thousand cubic meters
2. Includes steam turbines and in-house facilities, and excludes IPP
and other independent power sources
3. Gas development volume conversion excludes Cogen Techno
Service Co., Ltd.

Featuring cutting-edge technology, this 1,000kW-class
high-efficiency engine boasts power generation
efficiency of approximately 41%.

Development of Electricity Business

Making Inroads into the Electricity Sector
The electric power sector is an area where the Osaka Gas
Group can leverage its strengths in the natural gas business,
namely its LNG terminal infrastructure, solution marketing
capabilities and customer networks. Grasping deregulation
in the electric power sector as a business opportunity, the
Osaka Gas Group is making inroads into the electricity
business based on the following strengths.

Marketing of electricity
to specific customers
(MW)
2,000

Dual-fuel offer to
specific customers

Geographical expansion
in electricity business

Ownership of power plants

1,500

OG’s power plants (at Senboku, Himeji)
Customer’s surplus electricity from cogeneration plants
1,000

Overseas IPP
500

Domestic IPP
1) The Osaka Gas Group has three 150MW IPP generation
0
’03.3
’04.3
’05.3
’06.3
’07.3
capacity for wholesaling of electricity to power utilities.
Liberalization over 0.5MW
Over 0.05MW
Based on long-term contracts, we expect these three
power plants to provide a stable source of revenues of approximately ¥18 billion annually. In April
2004, Osaka Gas decided to acquire a 338MW portion of an IPP plant (total capacity: 845MW)
in Texas, U.S.A.
2) In Senboku, we plan to construct a large-scale power plant within one of our LNG receiving
terminals, making efficient use of existing land and natural gas line facilities. Osaka Gas will
minimize power generation costs by using cutting-edge combined cycle gas turbines.
3) Targeting customers that already use gas cogeneration systems, Osaka Gas is able to provide
one-stop energy solutions for both electricity and gas.

’08.3

’09.3

Combining Gas and Electricity Businesses
Osaka Gas aims to combine the gas and electricity businesses through “customer’s surplus electricity
from cogeneration plants” schemes, which are cogeneration systems designed to sell excess electricity
in addition to providing electricity for on-site use.
Excess electricity is generated by using thermal load as a basis for determining cogeneration scale,
and balancing it with a customer’s electricity requirements. The Osaka Gas Group purchases this
excess electricity and uses it in the retail electricity business as a power source. Customers, whose
primary energy source is heat, generate excessive electricity from exhaust heat, creating a relatively
inexpensive supply of electricity.
Example of a Business Scheme
Conventional operational pattern
(electrical load basis)

Company “A” Premises

On-site
thermal
demand

Electricity
Used on
company
“A”
premises

Energy supply service
Steam

On-site
electricity
demand
Electric
power
buying

Electric power selling

Retail sales

Osaka Gas
Group
CGS

ENNET

Gas supply

Osaka Gas

Supply
from CGS
power
generation

Customers’ surplus electricity
from cogeneration plants
(thermal load basis)
Electric
power
selling

Firing
CGS
power
generation
Supply
from CGS
waste
heat

Supply
from CGS
waste
heat

Note: ＣＧＳ=Cogeneration System
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NATURAL GAS
UPSTREAM OPERATIONS

LNG tanker Jamal

LNG unloading arm at a
receiving terminal

We are actively promoting natural gas upstream
operations along the new concepts in the LNG trading
and transportation business and the natural resource
development business.
Osaka Gas is advancing natural gas
upstream operations, such as gas field
development and LNG transportation,
Senboku
Qatar
Himeji
toward purchasing resources economiOman
Oman
cally as a major component of the cost
structure to strengthen cost competiImport
Routes
tiveness amid
ongoing
market liberalization, and achieving the objectives of
expanding business revenues from a
Brunei
position on the top of the value chain.
Malaysia
Malaysia
Partnering with the Shell Group,
Indonesia
Indonesia
Osaka Gas is jointly financing upstream development through the
Northern Australia Gas Venture
(NAGV). Our fourth LNG tanker
Australia
Australia
currently under construction is mainly
for transporting LNG from the
Western Australia Expansion Project.
The tanker will contribute to minimizing
transportation costs while we examine
how to use excess freight capacity. The Osaka Gas Group is making every effort to review the
pricing structure for existing customers, examine switching to newer, relatively inexpensive
contracts, and securing business profitability and price competitiveness.

The Northern Australia Gas Venture (NAGV)

Greater Sunrise Gas Field
Evans-Shoal Gas Field
Darwin

AUSTRALIA
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EXTENDING NATURAL GAS INFRASTRUCTURE
AND STRENGTHENING TIES WITH
LOCAL NATURAL GAS PROVIDERS

Ujigawa Pipeline Bridge

Shiga Line construction

Osaka Gas is extending natural gas infrastructure to
meet future growth in demand in its service area while
strengthening ties with local natural gas providers in
Western Japan.
Extending Natural Gas Infrastructure
Osaka Gas is able to provide a stable supply of natural gas through existing LNG tanks,
vaporizers and other basic infrastructure. The Osaka Gas Group plans to construct highpressure gas pipelines in areas of growing demand and to improve the stability of supply.
Osaka Gas is constructing the Shiga Line to expand demand and stably supply natural gas
in southern Shiga Prefecture. By fiscal 2011, we expect to develop demand for approximately
200 million cubic meters of gas in this region. Osaka Gas has begun to examine the construction of a pipeline connecting the Shiga Line to the LNG facilities of Chubu Electric Power
Co., Inc. in an aim to improve supply capacity and stability between Kyoto and Shiga.
Strengthening Ties with Local Natural Gas Providers
The Osaka Gas Group engages in the wholesale supply of natural gas to four gas companies in
the Kansai region. From April 2004, we started the wholesale supply of natural gas to Itami
Sangyo Co., Ltd. in Nishiwaki City.
On occasion, gas providers in the Kansai region have approached Osaka Gas with a request
to take over their operations. The Company obliges when it deems it will receive a sufficient
return on its investment. Osaka Gas has taken over the operations of Miki Gas, Tenri Gas and
Nabari Kintetsu Gas Co., Ltd. in recent years, and decided to acquire the operations of
Sasayama Gas and Kinosaki Gas in fiscal 2004.
For gas providers unable to purchase natural gas from our LNG bases and pipelines in
regions spanning from Chugoku to Kansai and Hokuriku, we are actively engaged in LNG
wholesale operations by trucks. Furthermore, the Osaka Gas Group established Cogen Techno
Service in 2000 to promote the proliferation of cogeneration systems, gas air conditioning
systems and other technologies that utilize gas along with regional gas providers, and since
then has enjoyed favorable growth.

Expanded Infrastructure for Natural Gas Business
Shiga Line
To be completed in 2007
D/600mm, L/46km

LNG and Gas Wholesale Customers

Pipeline connected
to Chubu electric power (TBD)

Himeji Line
Completed in Sep.03
Diameter 600mm,
Pipeline length 5km
Chubu EP
Kawagoe generation plant
Yokka-ichi LNG center

High pressure
pipelines over 4MPa

Keiji Line
Completed in Oct.03
D/750mm, L/46km

Himeji#8 LNG tank
Completed in Sep.03
Capacity: 180 thousand kl
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Note:

indicates wholesale supplies of LNG and gas through pipeline.

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
(EXCLUDING THE GAS SEGMENT)

Torishima Energy Center

LPG Recharging Station

Each independent business segment adds to the overall
capabilities of the Osaka Gas Group through synergies
and mutually beneficial relationships.
LPG, Electricity and Other Energies
The Liquid Gas Group, comprising Liquid Gas Co., Ltd. and 11 other companies, together with the
NIPG Group, made of Nissho Petroleum Gas Corporation and 18 other companies, develop the LPG
business. LPG sales volume increased 4.0% year on year to 723,000 tons in fiscal 2004, as the number
of retail customers rose by 23,000 to 163,000. This increase is attributable to the acquisition of Daiya
Nensho Co., Ltd. based in Mie Prefecture during fiscal 2004. We aim to further increase sales volume
and the number of retail customers in fiscal 2005 through the sale of strategic equipment such as
ECOWILL and floor heating systems as well as acquire sales stores. The Osaka Gas Group aims to
raise profits through efforts to reduce costs, streamline distribution and transmission, and engage in
one-lot purchases of LPG in necessary volumes.
(Please refer to Non-Regulated Energy Business (P.18) for details on electric power operations.)
Gas Appliances and House-Pipe Installation
The Osaka Gas Group engages in the sale of gas appliances and house-pipe installation with the
ultimate aim of contributing to the expansion of natural gas sales volume. We develop inexpensive,
easy-to-use, high-quality gas appliances and promote the wider use of gas equipment in order to
increase sales of natural gas. In house pipe installation, we install pipes to a customer’s house at an
affordable price in order to increase the number of customers and gas fixtures inside homes.
In fiscal 2004, the Osaka Gas Group performed 136,000 house pipe installations, roughly the same
as the previous fiscal year.
(Please refer to Gas Marketing (P.16) for details on gas appliances.)
Real Estate
Osaka Gas companies involved in the real estate business comprise Urbanex Co., Ltd. and 11 other
companies. Urbanex Co., Ltd. and OG Capital Co., Ltd. develop and manage office buildings and
homes to effectively utilize the real estate holdings of primarily the Osaka Gas Group. Urbanex Service
Co., Ltd. and OSC Engineering Co., Ltd. provide office building and maintenance services. In real
estate operations, there are nine consolidated subsidiaries including Urbanex Co., Ltd., Urbanex Service

LPG Sales
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(1,000 tons)
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Nakayama Joint Power Generation’s
150MW power plant in Osaka

A plant of Full Fine Co., Ltd
located in Okayama Prefecture
began operations in August 2003

Co., Ltd., OSC Engineering Co., Ltd., Osaka Kanzai Co., Ltd., and Kyoto Research Park Co., Ltd.
During fiscal 2004, Osaka Kanzai Co., Ltd. was newly added as a consolidated subsidiary.
In the fiscal year under review, the Urbanex Group posted an increase in sales due to growth in the
office building management business, despite slower sales from Urbanex Co., Ltd. selling real estate in
Kobe Harbor Land two years ago, and the closing of the Ogimachi Museum Square.
We are focusing efforts on expanding real estate operations and aim to maximize the value of the
Osaka Gas Group’s real estate holdings through property management combining real estate leasing
operations and facility management operations.
Others
1) Restaurant and Food-Related Business Operations: Kinrei Co., Ltd.
Consolidated subsidiary Kinrei Co., Ltd. operates restaurant chains, mainly the Kagono-ya chain of
Japanese-style restaurants. Kinrei also produces and sells frozen foods such as frozen noodles using
refrigeration know-how derived from cryogenic technology employed in Osaka Gas’s LNG operations. There were a total of 44 Kagono-ya restaurants in the Kansai region as of March 31, 2004.
During the fiscal year under review, Kinrei revenues and profits declined in restaurant operations
on account of fiercer competition in the frozen foods field and stagnant overall demand in the
restaurant industry. In the restaurant field, Kinrei plans to increase the pace of restaurant openings
with a particular concentration of management resources in Kagono-ya restaurant operations. Plans
call for the opening of 10 restaurants in fiscal 2005 to build a more robust foundation in the Kansai
area while making inroads into the Kanto region. In the foods sector, Kinrei aims to increase sales
through the diversification of sales channels while strengthening its lineup of frozen prepared noodle
products through new product introductions.
2) Information-Related Services Operations: OGIS Research Institute Group
The OGIS Research Institute Group is composed of five companies, of which OGIS Research
Institute Co., Ltd. is the core company. An offspring of the Information Systems Department of
Osaka Gas, OGIS Research Institute accounts for more than 50% of sales in the group and provides a wide spectrum of information-related services, including systems installation, consulting,
development, administration and maintenance. The company’s object-oriented programming
technology, which is essential to the efficient development of advanced systems, is among the most
advanced in Japan.
The OGIS Research Institute Group comprises three consolidated subsidiaries: OGIS
Research Institute Co., Ltd., Ube Information Systems, Inc. and System Answer Co., Ltd.,
which was added to the scope of consolidation in the fiscal year under review.
During the fiscal year under review, revenues of the OGIS Research Institute Group declined
slightly, owing to weak demand across the industry due to the IT slump, despite efforts to expand
orders for systems development from customers outside the Group. eCube Net.com, which engages
in electronic commerce operations, was absorbed into OGIS Research Institute Co., Ltd. in
December 2003 to increase management efficiency.
OGIS Research Institute plans to further promote its systems development services to customers outside the Group, mainly in areas of core competence—object-oriented programming and
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COSPA Goido fitness facility in Kashiba
City, Nara Prefecture, directly operated
by OG Sports

UML. In addition, OGIS Research Institute will accelerate the formation of a more solid group
foundation by introducing strategic products and advanced technologies through alliances, including merger and acquisition activities.

Lightweight, heat-resistant
materials used in
the Shinkansen train ”Nozomi’’

3) Carbon Materials and Chemical Products: Osaka Gas Chemicals Group
The Osaka Gas Chemicals Group consists of seven companies, including the core company, Osaka
Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd. The Group draws on the accumulated carbon-related technology of the
Osaka Gas Group to promote sales of various industrial products. In the chemical products field,
the Group provides a variety of products derived from coal tar and crude benzene, which are
primary ingredients in the chemicals industry. In the carbon materials field, the Group manufactures and sells electrode materials for lithium-ion batteries used in cellular phones, activated carbon
fiber cartridges for household water and air purifiers, and lightweight heat-resistant materials for
aircraft and trains. In the fine materials field, the Group produces and sells high-performance
materials for optical equipment.
The Osaka Gas Chemicals Group comprises four consolidated subsidiaries: Osaka Gas Chemicals
Co., Ltd., Taiyo Kasei, Ltd., Shanghai Dongdao Carbon Chemical Industry and Donnac Co., Ltd.,
which was added to the scope of consolidation in the fiscal year under review.
In fiscal 2004, revenues increased in the Osaka Gas Chemicals Group on account of the fullscale launch of the fine materials business and a recovery in demand for electrode materials. In
August 2003, the fine materials manufacturing subsidiary Full Fine Co., Ltd., which was established in a merger with JFE Chemical Corporation, a subsidiary of JFE Steel Corporation began
operations at its plant in Okayama Prefecture.
In the future, we will focus efforts on strengthening existing products such as carbon materials.
At the same time, we aim to build fine materials into a third earnings pillar after chemical products
and carbon materials.
4) Other Operations: OG Capital Group
The OG Capital Group consists of 18 companies that engage in a wide array of activities related to
engineering, housing, security, sports, services for the elderly and other services. Osaka Gas Security
Service Co., Ltd. provides security-related services such as the Internet home security system
“Irusu.” OG Sports Co., Ltd. manages sports facilities including the COSPA fitness centers.
The OG Capital Group comprises 13 consolidated subsidiaries, including OG Maintenance
Services Co., Ltd., which was added to the scope of consolidation in the fiscal year under review.
In fiscal 2004, revenues and profits increased in the OG Capital Group, reflecting expansion of
athletic operations at OG Sports from the aggressively opening of directly managed fitness centers,
growth in sales of Irusu in the home security business of Osaka Gas Security Service Co., Ltd., and
the advance of OUD Co., Ltd. into the deluxe sento (public baths) field with its first store opening
at the Expo Memorial Park in Osaka.
While advancing selection and concentration of various group operations, the OG Capital
Group aims to expand earnings by investing management resources in businesses with growth
potential, such as athletic and security businesses.
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OSAKA GAS GROUP TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Pursuing Advances in Technology Management
Osaka Gas regards technology as its most effective differentiating asset and a key element in enhancing competitiveness. For this reason, we have continued to invest strategic resources in technological development. Amid a rapidly
changing competitive environment, we are aware of the growing need to quickly incorporate the fruits of our technological development into our businesses. We will pursue the optimal management of technology in response to this
changing environment.
(1) Maximizing the Benefits of Investments in Development through a
“Selection and Concentration” Policy
In the past, Osaka Gas used coal as the fuel for manufacturing
gas. Since then, we have shifted to petroleum and now to
natural gas. The technologies we have cultivated in the process
have been passed down to the present day. These are our core
technologies, which we are continuing to strengthen:
• Carbon materials technologies developed from tar, the
main by-product of coal gas
• Catalyst technologies from the era when gas was manufactured from petroleum
• Cogeneration technology for maximizing utilization of
energy in the era of natural gas
In selecting development themes, we first identify the
relevant key technologies and determine whether or not we can
use our existing core technologies to refine those key technologies. Osaka Gas places top priority on acquiring key technologies through its own efforts and also works to obtain intellectual
property rights. Peripheral technologies outside our area of
expertise are efficiently procured externally.
In the field of gas-related technological development, our
aim is to enhance the competitiveness of gas. For this reason, we
focus on products that highlight the advantages of gas and
R&D themes that help us reinforce our gas-related technologies. To open up new businesses for the future, we promote
advances in our core technologies to develop products and
technologies aimed at creating new businesses.

(2) Accelerating Development through Stronger Alliances
1. Strategic Alliances
We are proactive in forming alliances with entities possessing
technologies and intellectual property that we do not have,
and through which we can anticipate synergistic benefits.
One example is our development of polymer electrolyte fuel
cell (PEFC) cogeneration systems for household use. Here,
we draw on two proprietary technologies—reforming
technology for making hydrogen from natural gas and
technology for heat exhaust recovery—while working
together with a cutting-edge fuel cell stack manufacturer.

(3) Exploiting the Fruits of Technological Development
1. Linking the Fruits Together
By continuing to improve and develop our core technologies,
we constantly seek to refine technologies that will benefit our
businesses. Our goal is to create a chain of integrated
technological developments based on our core technologies.
This involves investigating the potential for using our core
technologies to create products that provide new levels of
added value. Making full use of catalyst technologies, for
example, we have developed natural gas reforming technologies, which in turn we have utilized to develop compact
hydrogen production units and PEFC cogeneration systems
for household use.

2. Securing and Utilizing Intellectual Property
Intellectual property is one of Osaka Gas’s most valuable
business resources. In order to acquire and utilize intellectual
property in a strategic and effective manner, we are implementing the following three basic policies:
• Promote patent portfolio management
Build a robust patent portfolio by adding peripheral
patents to basic patents
• Use intellectual property rights to increase revenue
Engage in proactive licensing activities to increase
revenue derived from intellectual property
• Strengthen risk management of intellectual property
activities through legal means, as well as educational
and other activities based on regulations
These intellectual property policies are fundamental to
ensuring effective management of our technological resources. We will continue promoting technological development backed by solid intellectual property rights.

(4) Nurturing Personnel with a Technological Management Mindset
We are nurturing technicians who are fully aware of the
importance of technology management. For example, our core
technicians participate in courses offered by the Osaka Gas
Management of Technology (MOT) School—opened by our
affiliate, i-Support Co., Ltd.—and other intellectual property
training programs.

2. Internal Alliances through Organizational Restructuring
To develop technologies that constantly address the needs of
customers and the market, in fiscal 2003 our business units
responsible for our household, commercial and industrial
customers took over development of technologies related to
their own businesses. This will enable the business units to
swiftly and flexibly reflect the constantly changing needs of
customers in their technological development initiatives. As
needs arise, the Technology Division will adjust its development policies and provide support to the business units.

MOT Classroom
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Major Technological Development Themes
1. Technologies to Enhance the Competitiveness of Gas
Advances in Gas Equipment for Household Use
To maximize the advantages of gas, Osaka Gas will continue creating products
in a swift and timely manner that customers choose for their added value.
One notable development is KAWACK, a wall-mounted bathroom heater/
dryer for existing buildings that is easily installed and has a mist sauna
function. The unit sprays mist heated, and the nozzle can be adjusted to suit
the body size of the user, enabling customers to enjoy a comfortable wet sauna
in their own homes. Another product is NOOK-SILHOE, a new type of gas
hot water radiator featuring improved design and ease of installation. It is a
radiant heater that heats living rooms and bathrooms by discharging heat
produced by the circulation of hot water heated to temperatures ranging
between 60°C and 80°C.

Cogeneration System for Household Use

Mist sauna

NOOK-SILHOE
gas hot water radiator

Cogeneration systems are an indispensable part of our gas business. We have
worked to spread their popularity in the industrial and commercial sectors by
emphasizing their economic and environmental superiority. In March 2003,
we released a 1kW-class gas cogeneration system called ECOWILL, which
gives ordinary households an opportunity to use a cogeneration system. We
also plan to launch a PEFC cogeneration system for household use onto the
market in fiscal 2005. This will take full advantage of our superior natural gas
reforming technology, as well as heat exhaust recovery technology acquired in
developing ECOWILL.

Raising the Efficiency of Cogeneration Systems for Commercial
and Industrial Use
Cogeneration technologies for commercial and industrial use promise to play a
crucial role in Japan’s energy-saving efforts. Osaka Gas has focused its
technological development resources on cogeneration for some time, and will
continue to do so in the future.
In the small-volume electrical market (between 5kW and 25kW), we are
developing a modified version of the Gene-Light Series of micro-cogeneration systems. In the 9.9kW class, we have achieved a generating efficiency of
31.0% (overall energy efficiency 84.0%), the highest in its class, thanks to the
adoption of a highly efficient engine and a high-frequency permanent magnet
generator. We have also made further improvements to the Miller-cycle gas
engine used in our 380kW-class cogeneration system, which had a generating
efficiency of 40%. As a result, we have developed a long-stroke Miller-cycle
gas engine boasting a generating efficiency of 42% (see Note below).
One option for next-generation cogeneration is the solid oxide fuel cell
(SOFC), which has the advantage of high generating efficiency. We are
currently evaluating this technology and investigating its potential for
systemization.
Note: In a Miller cycle, the expansion ratio is larger than the compression ratio, and for this reason it
is also called a “high-expansion-ratio” cycle. It is highly efficient because it extends the piston
strokes while suppressing friction loss.
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Long-stroke Miller-cycle gas engine boasting a
generation efficiency of 42%

LNG-Related and Gas Transmission/Distribution Technology
Osaka Gas not only develops technologies that help boost sales of gas, but also
place high priority on infrastructural technologies that help reduce gas supply
costs. We are continuing our efforts in this area in order to enhance our
competitiveness.
In 2003, we constructed a 180,000m3 LNG tank, one of the world’s largest,
at our Himeji Terminal, using technology gained from many years of building
LNG tanks. The new LNG tank employs the latest cost-saving technologies,
including Invar pipes—which Osaka Gas was the first to commercialize in
2001—for some of the piping. Invar (iron-nickel) alloy has an extremely low
linear expansion coefficient, and so is virtually unaffected by contraction or
expansion caused by temperature variation. This eliminates the need for bent
piping used to absorb thermal contraction, leading to significant cost reductions. By fiscal 2006, we plan to use Invar pipes allowing us to create a seabed
gas tunnel with the smallest inside diameter for LNG piping. The pipeline
will connect the Senboku LNG No. 1 Terminal with the Senboku LNG No. 2
Terminal.

Himeji No. 8 LNG tank

Invar alloy LNG piping

2. Technological Development to Explore Future Businesses
Electricity Business Technology
We are wasting no time in developing both software and hardware technologies required for the electricity business, in order to nurture it into a core
energy business second only to natural gas.
In June 2004, we began operating a 50MW power plant at our Himeji
LNG Terminal to provide electricity to retail customers. We are currently
acquiring know-how and experience related to the construction, operation and
maintenance of a large-scale electric power plant scheduled to begin operation
at our Senboku Terminal in 2008. We are also developing ancillary functions
and a remote monitoring system for formulating electric power generation
plans and managing electrical energy consumed at the terminal, as well as
electrical energy transmitted to the outside.

Electricity transmission planning management

Environmental Technology
We have jointly developed a catalyst for treating smoke emissions that uses
pitch-based activated carbon fibers to simultaneously eliminate sulfur oxides
(SO2, SO3). This system enables operation using small quantities of water. It
also permits reductions of both power and maintenance costs. In February
2004, we established a joint venture company with Mitsubishi Heavy Industries called OMviro Co., Ltd., which will manufacture and sell this catalyst.
The catalytic wet oxidation process is a technology applying our catalytic
technologies developed through many years of gas manufacturing. It decomposes various kinds of industrial wastewater and sludge to produce water that
is nearly the same quality as tap water. When we handed over a plant in China
in 2001, we reduced costs by altering the design and procuring parts from
overseas. We are now developing these plants for use in China and Japan.

Monitoring actual electricity transmission

OMviro demonstration plant using a smoke
emission treatment catalyst
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Hydrogen Technology
In April 2003, Osaka Gas unveiled a compact hydrogen production unit
employing natural gas reforming technology. The unit is used in stations that
supply hydrogen for industrial use and for fuel cell vehicles. It has a hydrogen
production capacity of 30Nm3/hr, but we plan to extend our lineup to include
units with a production capacity of 100 to 300Nm3/hr. By integrating the
purifying and reforming units, which previously were separated, we reduced
the cost of the unit and halved its size. We are continuing development with a
view to making the units even smaller. Demand for hydrogen production units
is expected to increase rapidly as fuel cell vehicles become more widely
adopted and hydrogen station infrastructure is established.
Amid growing expectations of hydrogen use accompanying the popularization of fuel cell vehicles, we are conducting various tests of a natural gas
reforming hydrogen supply station, constructed as part of a national government project.

HYSERVE hydrogen production unit
using city gas reforming technology

Overcoated layer of LCD

Fine Materials Technology
Osaka Gas has employed technologies acquired since the era of manufacturing
city gas from coal to develop applications for fluorene derivatives contained in
coal tar. We have developed a method for manufacturing 20 or 30 types of
fluorene conductors, and are currently marketing these materials. The main
markets for fluorene derivatives are the optical and electronics sectors, where
such derivatives are attracting attention for their high refraction rates and
thermal resistance. This has prompted more and more leading manufacturers
to adopt these materials in the lenses of camera-equipped mobile phones and
in liquid crystal-related materials. Sales of fluorene derivatives in fiscal 2004
totaled approximately ¥2.0 billion, a three-fold increase over the previous
fiscal year. To meet expanding demand for fluorene conductors, we teamed up
with the JFE Group to establish a joint fluorene conductor manufacturing
company, called Full Fine Co., Ltd. That company’s plant has been in full-scale
operation since August 2003, with an annual production capacity of 560 tons.

Sample applications of fluorene conductors
Liquid crystal overcoat (above)
Lens of camera-equipped mobile phone (below)

Nanomaterials Technology
Osaka Gas has employed its experience in carbon materials technologies to
develop a new carbon nanotube with amorphous carbon in the interior wall of
the tube. We are currently developing this carbon nanotube as a hydrogen
storage material as part of our participation in a national government project
funded by NEDO (New Energy and Industrial Technology Development
Organization). We are also developing a material for electronics applications.
Electronics manufacturers who have received samples of this new material
have praised it highly.

Carbon nanotube
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Intellectual Property Activities of the Osaka Gas Group
Disclosing Information On Intellectual Property Activities
From the standpoint of technology management, the Osaka Gas Group has made aggressive efforts at intellectual
property activities, including strategically acquiring intellectual property rights as the result of technological development, acquiring patents on business models to promote business using IT, and garnering licensing revenues*.
As the value of intellectual property has grown in importance to corporate management, we would like to introduce
the intellectual property activities of the Osaka Gas Group to promote a firm understanding of our strategic initiatives.
*Note: Our intellectual property activities are based on the slogan “Get a patent, start your business” of American entrepreneur Jay S. Walker.

1. Intellectual Property Applications
Current Status of Applications
As the Osaka Gas Group advances selection and concentration in
line with business strategies, the Company has strategically
applied for patents in keeping with its patent portfolio management* objective of building up a base of potent patents.
We are securing influential patents through applications for
patents central to residential cogeneration technologies, which
contribute significantly to solving energy and environmental
problems, and technologies related to polymer electrolyte and
solid oxide fuel cells.
Osaka Gas is also taking an aggressive approach to applying for
patents on business models that use IT such as electricity retail
systems ahead of electric power liberalization and work for
customers such as services and maintenance. In fiscal 2000 and
2001, Osaka Gas aggressively applied for patents on critical
business models across operations, including marketing.
We are also applying for patents on design and trademarks. As
of fiscal 2004, the Osaka Gas Group had applied for a total of 718
industrial-related patents.

Number of Patent Applications (Osaka Gas Group)
’99.3

Number of patent applications
(of which business model patents)

’00.3

’01.3

’02.3

’03.3

’04.3

988 1,095

979

904

760

638

157

159

108

61

17
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Patent applications for cogeneration and residential fuel cell systems
150

Commercial-use cogeneration system
and others
Residential cogeneration and fuel cell systems

120

90

60

30

0
’99.3

’00.3
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’02.3

’03.3

’04.3

*Note: 1. Patent portfolio management is a management approach where business strategies entail the acquisition of patent portfolios
centered on the basic patents to core technologies, along with their related patents.
2. All patent applications on a domestic basis

Example of patent application Patent strategy for residential fuel cell systems

The following is an example of a strategic application for patents related to residential fuel cell technology.
(1) Osaka Gas applies independently for patents on core technologies.
1. Reformers
Osaka Gas is working to win patents independently on fuel reformers
and catalytic technologies, an area where Osaka Gas is strong in its
expertise.

Patent applications for residential fuel cell systems
(Cumulative patent applications as of March 31, 2004)
Reformers and
other related equipment

2. Self-learning control system (operation control technology)
We are applying for patents related to operational control of fuel cell
systems, including self-learning control, which has the greatest impact
on energy conservation.

(2) Patent application strategy for non-core technologies (cells, etc.)
Osaka Gas is forming alliances with manufacturers based on the
foremost principle of accelerating commercialization.
In some cases, the Company applies patents jointly with those
manufacturers.

Cells

Fuel
reformer

16

85

Waste heat
recovery equipment

136
(of which self-learning
control systems: 89)

28%
43%
29%

Fuel reforming systems

CO conversion
and removal
catalysts

User support and
other systems

39

29

2. Ownership and Usage of Intellectual Property Rights
Ownership of Patent Rights
[Energy Businesses]

In the LNG and gas transmission/distribution fields, Osaka
Gas owns patents that contribute to cost reductions and safety,
including patents on the non-excavation construction
method and underground facility inspection technology.
In commercial/industrial-use fields, the Company owns
innovative patents on advanced environmental technologies,
including those related to wastewater processing technology using catalytic wet oxidation (CWO), which is being
commercialized in China, and sludge melting technology, as
well as the patents on cogeneration and fuel cells. In the
residential field, Osaka Gas owns patents on residential

cogeneration systems as well as the rapidly growing floor
heating systems and bathroom heating and drying
equipment.
[Non-Energy Businesses]

The Osaka Gas Group is strategically acquiring patents on
materials technologies for fields expected to grow in the
future. These patents relate to: lithium ion rechargeable
battery materials, which are used in fuel cells and electric
automobiles; pitch activated carbon fibers, which function
as a catalyst in desulfurization and denitration; fluorene,
which acts as a next-generation optical material; and carbon
nanotubes, which can be used as hydrogen storage materials
and electron emission materials.

Number of Patents Owned by the Osaka Gas Group (as of March 31, 2004): 1,280
Production, transportation and supply fields:

377

[Breakdown of Technology]
• LNG plant facilities (e.g. Invar alloy LNG piping)
• Method of pipeline construction
(e.g. Non-excavation construction method)
• Pipeline maintenance (e.g. Underground facility inspection technology)

Materials technology field:

163

[Breakdown of Technology]
• Lithium ion rechargeable battery materials
• Carbon fibers used as a catalyst in desulfurization and denitration
• Fluorene
• Carbon nanotubes

Commercial/industrial-use energy field:

228

[Breakdown of Technology]
• Cogeneration
• Fuel cells
• Environmental Preservation Technologies
(e.g. Wastewater processing technology)

Residential energy field:

328

[Breakdown of Technology]
• Residential cogeneration systems
• Floor heating systems, bathroom heating and drying equipment

There are 184 more patents that are not classified in the aforementioned fields.

Use of Intellectual Property (Earnings Growth)
Aiming to aggressively use its intellectual property, Osaka Gas
is effectively executing 51% of its owned patents. This far
exceeds the average 30% ratio of active patent usage at
companies in Japan.
For patents that can be used outside the Company, the
Osaka Gas Group cashes in on licensing revenues through the
following activities:

By the end of fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas has concluded licensing
contracts for approximately 16% of its patent holdings,
generating fiscal 2004’s annual royalty revenues of about ¥240
million by licensing patents related to fuel cell technology to
six companies LNG tanks to three companies and pipeline
safety equipment to two companies, etc.
Licensing contracts

Use of owned patents

• Planning and implementation of licensing strategies that use
external specialists
• Deployment of licenses overseas through Web-based patent
distribution markets
• Further identification of patents that can be sold externally by
inventorying owned patents

Other

16%

33%
Internal use
only

11%

Internal use

51%

40%

To be used

3. Intellectual Property Risk Management
Rules Regarding Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Educational Activities

Osaka Gas is making efforts to strengthen risk management
for intellectual property. In April 2002 the Company formulated Rules Regarding the Acquisition of Intellectual Property,
which entails the following elements, to govern internal
intellectual property activities:

We provide the following educational and training opportunities for Osaka Gas Group employees in an effort to strengthen
overall intellectual property activities and risk management.

• Internal organization work responsibilities, authority and
operating rules
• Proactive measures and responses to disputes with third
parties
• Handling of confidential information
• Ownership and recognition and compensation for corporate
inventions and creations
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• Intellectual property training for managers, new employees
and mid-level technicians
• Training seminars about trademarks and copyrights
• Classes on patent portfolio management
• Lectures by intellectual property professionals outside the
company

EFFORTS TO MAXIMIZE OUR CORPORATE VALUE FOR SOCIETY
(CORPORATE CODE OF CONDUCT, SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIONS)

To realize sustainable growth of the economy, corporations are expected more and more to fulfill their social responsibilities in contributing to the improvement of the environment and society, respecting human rights and managing
occupational health. The Osaka Gas Group aims to maximize its social value on various fronts ranging from information disclosure and compliance to environmental activities and social contributions.
Please refer to the Message from the Management for a description of our basic policies on corporate governance and compliance. In
addition, our Environmental and Social Action Report contains detailed information about compliance, environmental activities and contributions to society.

Osaka Gas Group Code of Conduct
The Osaka Gas Group Code of Conduct embodies the following points, and is used to spread awareness of these issues
throughout the Group.

1. Code of Conduct as a Good Corporate Citizen:
1) Respect human rights, and do not discriminate against our customers and employees based on race, religious
beliefs, sex, social status or family lineage
2) Consider environmental preservation by preventing emissions of harmful substances and recycling waste

2. Code of Conduct in Gas Production and Supply:
1) Carry out business activities in good faith by adhering to laws and ordinances related to the gas business and
placing customer satisfaction first
2) Ensure the safety of customers in the production and sale of products as well as construction work. In the event of
an accident, quickly find the cause and make every effort to prevent a reoccurrence by taking appropriate measures
such as recalling products and issuing warnings.

3. Code of Conduct for Business Transactions:
1) Conduct business transactions in a proactive and fair manner in accordance with antimonopoly law
2) Conduct fair transactions, and do not take advantage of superior position over transaction partners if one exists
3) Build a relationship of trust with customers in good faith
4) Socialization with partners and suppliers should be conducted with moderation and common sense in compliance
with the law

4. Code of Conduct for Information Management:
1) Manage information so that customer information is not leaked. Disclose management information in a timely
and appropriate manner
2) Manage our intellectual property and do not infringe on the intellectual property of others

5. Code of Conduct in the Workplace:
1) Strive to create a workplace where employees work comfortably with mutual respect
2) Do not discriminate against or treat unfairly employees in their wages and benefits regardless of a type of
employment

6. Code of Conduct in Society:
1) Prohibit transactions and sharing profits with groups that show antisocial behavior
2) Pay taxes fairly
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Social Stewardship
The Osaka Gas Group believes contributing to society
and deepening its connection with customers is its
corporate mission and crucial to future development. In
line with this belief, we are contributing to society
through the establishment of foundations that encourage our employees to make contributions to local
communities as a corporate citizen as well as to promote
welfare and international exchange.
Since 1991, Osaka Gas has backed the volunteer
activities of its employees by providing information and
putting in place support systems in terms of time,
money and facilities. The community leave system was
created to allow employees to take time off to participate in community events and support local sports and
cultural exchange activities. Over the past 10 years, the
community leave system has been used on about 150
different occasions. The community gift system was
started to provide financial support for events as well as
the purchase of equipment and materials for groups and
individuals that contribute to the betterment of the

welfare of local communities, such as supporting
handicapped people and the elderly, taking care of
infants and children, and cleaning activities. It has
contributed on about 180 different occasions over the
past 10 years.
Established in 1985, the Osaka Gas Group Welfare
Foundation has worked closely with local communities
in promoting welfare activities for the elderly, assistance
for research and surveys, and activities to improve the
health of the elderly. Founded in 1992, the Osaka Gas
Foundation of International Cultural Exchange provides
educational support to elementary, junior high schools,
high schools and universities in natural gas producing
nations in Southeast Asia and the Pacific region, by
supplying educational materials, providing assistance for
research in natural gas-related technologies and environmental technologies, awarding scholarships to high
school students and university students, and assisting in
the training of technicians and researchers.

Environmental Activities
Based on the fundamental concept that environmental
activities are the business activities of an energy utility
company, Osaka Gas has formulated the 2010 Environmental Goals and 2005 Medium-Term Environmental
Goals as a guide for Groupwide efforts to preserve the
environment. We have set 34 medium-term environmental targets, including 24 quantitative targets, that
follow three action guidelines such as for CO2 emissions
per cubic meter of gas sold.
From fiscal 2004, we are introducing Environmental
Sustainability Indicators to effectively promote environmental activities based on a quantitative understanding
of progress in environmental management. For environmental sustainability, we have set a target of 4.0 cubic
meters per yen for fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2004, we
achieved environmental sustainability of 3.7 cubic
meters per yen as a result of reductions in CO2 emissions from our business activities and reductions in final
disposal waste volume for soil excavated during gas
pipeline construction and industrial waste.
In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas achieved a primary target
in its 2005 Medium-Term Environmental Goals two
years ahead of schedule. We attained CO2 emissions per
cubic meter of gas sold totaling 18g CO2/m3, compared
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with the goal of 19g CO2/m3. Osaka Gas also made
steady progress in easing the environmental impacts of
its business activities, such as by reducing resource
consumption and increasing use of recycled materials. In
addition, we are making efforts to improve the environment on various fronts, such as promoting energy
service company (ESCO) operations in Japan, spreading
environmental technology overseas including in China
and Indonesia, introducing tri-generation technology
for effectively using CO2 in exhaust gas, and developing
storage and supply technology for hydrogen as a nextgeneration energy source.
As a means for effectively advancing environmental
activities at Group companies, we plan to introduce
environmental management systems including the
acquisition of ISO 14001 certification by fiscal 2011.
Group companies have been acting on their own accord,
and 10 companies have already acquired ISO 14001
certification for their environmental management
systems. For those Group companies that have not
acquired certification yet, Osaka Gas aims to promote
its acquisition depending on business scale and type by
fiscal 2011.

FINANCIAL SECTION
Consolidated Six-Year Summary
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Millions of Yen

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

Operating revenues .........................................................

¥ 831,366

¥ 849,225

¥ 951,926

¥ 973,565

¥ 947,978

¥ 951,324

Costs and expenses..........................................................

764,991

786,501

877,872

876,888

862,004

859,228

Operating income.............................................................

66,375

62,723

74,055

96,676

85,974

92,096

Other expenses...................................................................

(13,538)

(16,781)

(14,210)

(31,313)

(34,949)

(13,934)

Income before income taxes ............................................

52,838

45,943

59,845

65,364

51,025

78,162

Income taxes ........................................................................

31,097

24,069

28,090

33,491

20,086

26,870

Net income............................................................................

21,614

27,345

36,097

39,418

29,686

47,066

Total current assets...........................................................

224,445

195,046

222,613

193,971

216,796

203,878

Investments and other assets ....................................

123,657

171,539

223,334

197,486

152,739

172,020

Property, plant and equipment, at cost...............

826,917

842,770

850,090

837,627

822,180

795,820

Intangibles .............................................................................

3,331

10,158

14,931

14,431

17,913

27,511

Total assets.............................................................................

1,178,352

1,219,514

1,310,976

1,243,520

1,209,628

1,199,229

Total current liabilities.....................................................

300,917

287,099

263,501

254,374

246,343

252,712

Total non-current liabilities..........................................

495,012

499,952

565,770

513,300

501,869

442,405

Total shareholders’ equity.............................................

380,846

428,523

475,019

468,706

453,285

495,635

Total interest-bearing debt..........................................

476,922

491,011

510,179

465,015

494,535

455,700

Number of consolidated companies ....................

20

25

35

43

56

77

Net income............................................................................

¥ 8.56

¥ 10.94

¥ 14.72

¥ 16.33

¥ 12.56

¥ 20.56

Shareholders’ equity ........................................................

152.31

172.95

195.52

197.85

197.28

222.15

Equity ratio (%) ....................................................................

32.3

35.1

36.2

37.7

37.5

41.3

Debt ratio (%) .......................................................................

40.5

40.3

38.9

37.4

40.9

38.0

Interest coverage ratio (Times) .................................

6.8

7.6

9.8

13.2

14.2

12.9

Return on average total assets (%)..........................

1.8

2.3

2.9

3.1

2.4

3.9

Return on average shareholders’ equity (%).....

5.7

6.8

8.0

8.4

6.4

9.9

For The Year:

At Year-End:

Per Share Data (Yen):

Key Ratios
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group Companies
The Osaka Gas Group consists of 77 consolidated subsidiaries. The
Group’s business activities encompass such fields as natural gas,
LPG, electricity, other energies, gas appliances, house-pipe installation,
real estate leasing and other operations.
Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. and Nakayama

Nagoya Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. were only included in the consolidated balance sheets during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003,
and are fully incorporated into the consolidated financial statements from
April 2004.

Changes in Segment Classifications and Method of Disposal for Unallocated Expenses
The Osaka Gas Group implemented organizational reforms in April
2003. With this opportunity, Osaka Gas changed the way it classifies
segments to more closely correlated segment information with its
two major business fields of the Energy Businesses and the NonEnergy Businesses. The previous segment classifications were gas,
house-pipe installation, gas appliances, LPG and industrial gas, real
estate leasing and other businesses. From March 2004, segment classifications are 1) Gas, 2) LPG, Electricity and Other Energies, and 3) Gas
Appliances and House-Pipe Installation, in the energy business,
and 4) Real Estate and 5) Others, in the non-energy businesses. The
primary changes to segment classifications are as follows. The previous
fiscal year’s results were reclassified according to the new segment
classifications to facilitate calculations of year-on-year growth rates.
• Electricity supply, heat supply and consigned LNG process operations,

which were included in the previous other businesses segment, are
combined with the previous LPG and industrial gasses segment
into the new LPG, Electricity and Other Energies segment.
• Included in the previous other businesses segment, pipe laying and
excavated earth recycling, along with the previous gas appliances
and house-pipe installation segments, are combined into the new gas
appliances and house-pipe installation segment.
• Building maintenance services, included in the former other businesses
segment, along with real estate leasing, are combined into the new real
estate segment.
• Previously recorded under corporate, the general administrative
expenses of Osaka Gas are now distributed appropriately among
each segment.

Operating Revenues and Operating Income
1) Gas
In the gas segment, the gas business forms the core operations of
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas provided gas to
6,316,000 residential homes, an increase of 68,000 homes from the end
of the previous fiscal year. The Company made efforts to develop
demand with fan-forced heaters, gas hot water floor heating systems and
ECOWILL cogeneration systems for residential customers. The
average monthly usage per residential customer declined 0.5% to 34.3
cubic meters compared with the previous fiscal year, owing to unseasonably cool temperatures in the summer and warm temperatures in the
winter. As a result of customer growth, sales volume of gas to residential customers increased 0.3% year on year to 2,304 million cubic
meters. In the commercial, public sector and medical fields, gas sales volume edged up 0.6% year on year to 1,545 million cubic meters, on
account of the acquisition of new customers for buildings in mainly the
medical field and for renewal air-conditioning projects in existing

Customers (meters installed)
(thousand)
Average monthly usage per customer
(m3/month)

Gas sales
(million m3)

buildings, despite a decline in air-conditioning related demand due
to cool summer temperatures. In the industrial field, despite the
adverse effects of some customers closing plants, sales volume to
existing major customers increased as new demand was acquired,
resulting in an increase of 1.3% in gas sales volume to 3,735 million cubic
meters. In the field of wholesale gas customers, sales volume
advanced 8.8% to 182 million cubic meters, reflecting the steady
acquisition of major customers of gas suppliers. As a result, nonconsolidated gas sales volume increased 1.0% to 7,766 million cubic
meters compared with the previous fiscal year.
Owing to the aforementioned increase in gas sales volume, revenues rose 0.5%, or ¥2.8 billion, to ¥573.9 billion from the previous fiscal year. Operating income grew 1.7%, or ¥0.9 billion, to ¥58.0
billion on account of efforts to reduce costs across the board, despite the
recording of one-time expenses for the disposal of land in accordance
with the cancellation of the Tsuruga LNG terminal plan.

2004/3

2003/3

A

B

6,316
318

A–B

A/B

6,248

68

101.1%

314

4

101.2%

6,634

6,562

72

101.1%

34.3

34.5

(0.2)

99.5%

Average of all customers

108.1

108.0

0.1

100.1%

Residential

2,304

2,298

6

100.3%

Commercial/ industrial

5,280

5,222

58

101.1%

3,735

3,686

49

101.3%

Commercial

986

986

0

100.0%

Public and medical institutions

559

550

9

101.6%

182

168

15

108.8%

7,766

7,687

79

101.0%

Residential
Commercial/ industrial
Total
Residential

Industrial

Wholesale
Total

[Unit: 45MJ/m3]
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2) LPG, Electricity and Other Energies
In this segment, revenues climbed 10.5%, or ¥12.5 billion, to ¥132.1 billion along with an increase in consolidated subsidiaries including
Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd., Nakayama Nagoya
Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd. and Cogeneration Technology
Service Co., Ltd. Operating profit rose 19.5%, or ¥2.5 billion, to
¥15.7 billion as a result of an expanded scope of consolidation.

4) Real Estate
Revenues from the real estate segment increased slightly, as higher
sales stemming from the operational start of new properties were
undermined by weaker sales due to the sale of real estate for lease in the
Kobe Harbor Land area in 2003. As a result of efforts to reduce
expenses, operating income rose 10.9%, or ¥0.6 billion, to ¥7 billion from
the previous fiscal year.

3) Gas Appliances and House-Pipe Installation
Revenues in this segment declined 5.4%, or ¥8.1 billion, to ¥143.5 billion. This decline was attributable to the exclusion of Harman Co., Ltd.
from the scope of consolidation, which offset firm sales of gas appliances,
especially large-scale appliances such as industrial cogeneration systems.
On the contrary, operating profit rose 15.0%, or ¥0.2 billion, to ¥2.2 billion compared with the previous fiscal year as a result of cost reductions
through efforts to lower gas appliance costs, including distribution
costs, as well as installation costs.

5) Others
Sales of others rose 2.9%, or ¥3.8 billion, to ¥136.0 billion as a result of
an increase in the number of consolidated subsidiaries with the addition
of OG Maintenance Service Co., Ltd. and firm performance overall.
Operating income grew 18.4%, or ¥1.1 billion, to ¥7.4 billion along with
efforts to reduce costs.

(Unit: 100 million yen)

Gas

+0.5%
Operating revenues

Operating income

5,739

LPG, Electricity
and
Other Energies

Gas Appliances
and
House-Pipe
Installation

+10.5%
1,321

–5.4%
1,435

Real
Estate

+1.3%
338

Others

Elimination of Internal
Transactions and
Transactions Involving
All Companies

Consolidated
Results

(682)

9,513

+2.9%
1,360

[+28]

[+125]

[–81]

[+4]

[+38]

+1.7%

+19.5%

+15.0%

+10.9%

+18.4%

+0.4%
[–81]

[+33]
+7.1%

580

157

22

70

74

15

920

[+9]

[+25]

[+2]

[+6]

[+11]

[+4]

[+61]

Each percentage figure shows a rate of change from the previous year.
Each figure in [ ] shows a change from the previous year.

Net Income
In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas entered into debt assumption agreements with
banks for notes payable in order to reduce interest-bearing debt.
Accordingly, the Company recorded a ¥3.7 billion loss on debt
assumption under other expenses. In addition, Osaka Gas proceeded to
sell landholdings as a part of efforts to reduce assets. As a result, we
recorded an extraordinary loss of ¥4.6 billion on loss on sale of property,
plant and equipment.

In fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a ¥9.5 billion loss on writedown of investment securities due to the weak stock market, ¥13.2 billion in lump-sum benefits for early retirement, and a ¥10.6 billion
loss on sale of real estate in Kobe Harbor Land. These items were
absent in fiscal 2004.
As a result, net income totaled ¥47.0 billion, an increase of 58.5%, or
¥17.3 billion, from the previous fiscal year.
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Asset Management
Asset Management Policies
The Osaka Gas Group views deregulation in the electricity and gas sectors as a business opportunity, and intends to aggressively expand
business investment in growth fields—especially electricity—while
reducing assets in unprofitable business fields and ongoing operations. In order to minimize investment risk caused by changes in the
operating environment, Osaka Gas is tightening scrutiny on investment
and cash flow analysis based on common Group investment stan-

dards that have been applied on individual investment proposals in
the past. After due consideration of the weighting of third-party and
internal capital on capital costs and maintaining a sound financial
position, Osaka Gas aims to maximize capital efficiency by targeting a
debt/equity ratio of approximately 10% and a shareholders’ equity
ratio of more than 40%.

Capital Investment
In fiscal 2004, capital investment totaled ¥69.7 billion, of which
¥38.9 billion was focused mainly on supply facilities in the gas business.
As for production facilities, Osaka Gas completed the Himeji No. 8
LNG tank during the fiscal year. For supply facilities, the Company
extended its gas pipelines by 575 kilometers by beginning construction
on the Kyoto-Shiga Line and the Himeji Line, as well as continuing
construction on the Shiga Line during the fiscal year under review, for
a total of 45,281 kilometers by March 31, 2004. Capital investment at
consolidated subsidiaries totaled ¥22.7 billion, reflecting an increase in
leasing assets at OGIC Corporation, which is involved in the leasing
business, and construction work on power source cogeneration systems at Gas and Power Co., Ltd.

(Unit: 100 million yen)

Production facilities
Supply facilities
Operational facilities, etc.

2004/3

2003/3

Increase/Decrease

22

57

(35)

389

366

23

58

60

(2)

Total (Non-Consolidated)

470

483

(13)

Total (Consolidated)

697

671
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Investment Performance
In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas increased its investment in Daiya Nensho Co.,
Ltd. and decreased its stake in Harman Co., Ltd. to strengthen its presence in the LPG business field. Investments in securities were

increased by ¥30.0 billion to total ¥112.8 billion owing to an increase of
¥41.3 billion from mark-to-market valuation of securities.

Efforts to Reduce Assets and Liabilities
The Osaka Gas Group is promoting reductions in total assets and
liabilities from the perspective of enhancing management efficiency and
improving financial stability. In fiscal 2004, the Company continued to

make contributions to the reserve for retirement benefits in the
amount of ¥39.7 billion on a non-consolidated basis. We are
methodically selling off investments in securities.

Total Assets
Long-term tax deferred assets fell ¥18.4 billion year on year to ¥20.1 billion, owing to an increase in net unrealized gains on securities.
Taking into account aforementioned capital investment, investment

performance and asset reductions, total assets were ¥1,199.2 billion as
of March 31, 2004, a decrease of ¥10.3 billion from a year earlier.

Interest-Bearing Debt
Using generous cash flows during the fiscal year under review, the
Company slashed interest-bearing debt. Osaka Gas repaid notes
payable that matured in 2004 and entered into debt assumption
agreements with banks for notes payable in Euroyen due 2012. As a
result, notes payable declined ¥21.0 billion year on year to ¥218.8 billion.
In addition, borrowings decreased ¥19.8 billion to ¥210.8 billion as of
March 31, 2004, as a result of bond reimbursements for long-term debt
and advanced redemption. After factoring in changes in commercial
paper, interest-bearing debt totaled ¥455.7 billion, a year-on-year
decrease of ¥38.8 billion.

Total Interest-Bearing Debt (at year-end)
(Unit: 100 million yen)

6,000
5,000

4,910

5,101
4,650

4,945
4,557

4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
0
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2000/3

2001/3

2002/3

2003/3

2004/3

Buyback of Treasury Stock
In fiscal 2004, Osaka Gas purchased 65,553,000 shares of its own
stock for ¥20.0 billion in line with a resolution passed by the Board of
Directors in December 2003. The share buyback was done within
the framework setting an upper limit of 67 million shares and ¥20.0 bil-

lion, which was approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The acquired shares are retained as treasury stock. Accordingly,
Osaka Gas has acquired a cumulative total of 291,941,000 shares of treasury stock for ¥87.9 billion.

Employees’ Severance and Pension Benefits
As of March 31, 2004, the fair value of pension assets had increased by
approximately ¥76.0 billion compared with a year earlier in accordance with contributions to external pension funds. Due to an
improvement in pension investments, unrecognized actuarial differences
declined approximately ¥37.0 billion from the previous fiscal yearend. As a result of these factors, liability for severance and retirement
benefits totaled ¥42.8 billion as of March 31, 2004.
In severance and retirement benefit expenses, service costs and
interest cost declined as a result of a decrease in the number of
employees. Write-off of actuarial gains increased ¥2.4 billion to ¥4.9 billion, reflecting pension asset investment conditions in fiscal 2002. As a
result, severance and retirement benefit expenses grew ¥1.0 billion to
¥15.5 billion compared to the previous fiscal year.
Reserve for Retirement Benefits (as of March 31, 2004)
(1) Projected benefit obligation...............................¥(286,310)million
(2) Plan assets as fair value .........................................236,437
(3) Unfunded projected benefit obligation (1)+(2)......(49,873)
(4) Unrecognized actuarial difference.............................7,657
(5) Unrecognized prior service cost .....................................—
(6) Net amount on balance sheet
(3)+(4)+(5).............................................................(42,216)
(7) Prepaid pension cost ....................................................673

Information on Retirement Benefit Costs
(for the year ended March 31, 2004)
(1) Service costs............................................................¥8,513 million
(2) Interest expenses .......................................................4,900
(3) Expected return on investments ..............................(2,869)
(4) Actuarial difference recognized as costs....................4,941
(5) Past service liabilities recognized as costs ......................71
(6) Retirement benefit costs ((1)+(2)+(3)+(4)+(5)) .......15,557
Note: Retirement benefit costs of consolidated subsidiaries adopting simple computation
methods are included in “service costs.”

Information on the basis of determining retirement benefit liabilities
and other costs:
Allocation of expected amount
Allocation of fixed
of retirement benefits
amounts to relevant
to be paid to employees
periods
Discount rate ....................................................Mainly 1.8%
Expected return on investments........................Mainly 1.8%
Years to amortize past service liabilities ............Mainly one year
Years to amortize actuarial difference ...............Mainly ten years

(8) Employee’s severance and retirement benefits
(6)–(7) ...................................................................(42,889)
Note: Some subsidiaries employ the simple computation method for calculating retirement benefits.
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Cash Flow Analysis
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, net cash provided by operating activities rose ¥40.3 billion to ¥132.8 billion due to higher net
income. Net cash used in investing activities increased ¥18.2 billion to
¥67.8 billion, reflecting the absence of gains on the sale of fixed
assets recorded in fiscal 2003. Net cash used in financing activities

rose ¥45.8 billion to ¥75.9 billion, owing primarily to a reduction in
interest-bearing debt.
As a result, cash and cash equivalents totaled ¥15.7 billion as of
March 31, 2004, a decline of ¥10.3 billion from a year earlier.

(Unit: 100 million yen)

Cash flow from operating activities

2004/3

2003/3

1,328

925

Increase/Decrease

403

Cash flow from investment activities

(678)

(496)

(182)

Cash flow from financial activities

(759)

(300)

(458)

Increase/decrease of cash and cash equivalents

(108)

128

(236)

157

260

(103)

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end

Free Cash Flow
In fiscal 2004, free cash flow grew ¥49.5 billion to ¥73.2 billion due to
higher profits. In addition to dividend payments, the Company
incurred additional IPP acquisition costs. The other investments
allotment of ¥40.0 billion was used for the purchase of an LPG sales

company and the acquisition of treasury stock. Due to a lack of other
promising investment proposals, the remainder of the allotment was used
to pare down interest-bearing debt.

Free cash flow 56.5

Outside funds etc.

20.0

13.8
Fiscal 2004
Forecast
Dividends paid

40.0
Special investment budget

Planned investment for growth
Free cash flow 73.2

13.8
Fiscal 2004
Results
Dividends paid

15.0

3.9

20.0

Reduction in interest-bearing debt

Repurchase of
common stock

Planned investment for growth
e.g. Electricity business 10.8
Construction of Shiga line 3.9

Utilization of special investment budget
(e.g. Acquisition of LPG sales company)
Free cash flow 72.1

13.4
Fiscal 2005
Forecast
Dividends paid

Outside funds etc.

50.0

17.3

Special investment budget

Planned investment for growth
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Notes: 1. Free cash flow = cash flow from operating activities - capital expenditures
2. Capital investment does not include investment for growth.
3. The “planned investment for growth” includes both capital expenditures and loans/ investments.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure of Risk
Business Risk
As an independent corporation, Osaka Gas believes it has the management resources and business strategies to prosper amid competition
for the foreseeable future based on currently available information.
Profitability in the core gas business is primarily affected by the following
factors:
• Declines in demand and prices due to the removal of barriers to outside companies participating in the gas business in accordance
with deregulation in Japan’s gas industry
• Fluctuations in weather and water temperatures affect gas
demand.

• Greater-than-expected fluctuations in crude oil prices and
exchange rates, which form the basis for LNG prices. LNG is
the primary raw material for producing gas.
The profitability of other businesses is affected by conditions in
their respective markets. However, Osaka Gas strives to minimize
the impact of other businesses on profits through a firm grasp of and
swift responses to business execution conditions in concert with all
Group companies.

Market Risk Management Policy
In addition to business risks, the Osaka Gas Group is exposed to
market risks, including changes in foreign exchange and interest
rates. To hedge against these risks, the Osaka Gas Group employs
derivative transactions. These transactions are for the sole purpose of
hedging against risks based on actual demand conditions. The
Company does not conduct derivative transactions for speculative
purposes. The execution and management of derivative transactions are
based on internal rules and handled by the finance department of

each Group company, and overseen on a Groupwide basis by the
accounting and finance departments of Osaka Gas.
The Osaka Gas Group constantly monitors market risks by periodically evaluating the market value of derivative transactions. The
Osaka Gas Group believes that credit risk is negligible for the parties
with which it enters into derivative transactions, as the Company
only deals with major financial institutions in accordance with
requirements stipulated by internal rules.

● Air and Water Temperature (Weather) Risks
Gas sales volume is affected by changes in the temperature of air and
water. A 1˚C change in average annual temperatures affects residential
gas sales volume by approximately 4–6%. For air-conditioning gas
sales, a 1˚C change in the average annual temperature affects gas sales
volume by about 10%. Osaka Gas hedges against some risks from air and
water temperatures by using derivative instruments.

purpose are in principle settled within a short period of approximately one week, and do not substantially affect the performance of the
Osaka Gas Group. The Osaka Gas Group engages in currency swap
contracts for principal on the issuance of applicable debt as a hedge
against currency fluctuation risks on debt denominated in foreign
currencies. These transactions are completed on the interest payment and
maturity dates of the debt.

● Foreign Exchange Rate and Oil Price Risks
Changes in foreign exchange rates and oil prices affects LNG prices. For
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2005, for instance, a change ¥1/US$
annually affects the cost of gas by about ¥1.4 billion, while a change of
$1/bbl in the price of oil has an impact of approximately ¥3.5 billion.
The impact of changes in foreign exchange rates and oil prices is offset
by reflecting these factors in gas prices through the fuel cost adjustment
system, but due to a time lag in reflecting these items, they are occasionally carried forward into the next fiscal year.
The Osaka Gas Group engages in forward foreign currency contracts
as it procures LNG, LPG and other basic materials with U.S. dollars for
foreign currency payables. Forward foreign currency contracts for this

● Interest Rate Risks
The Osaka Gas Group sustains an appropriate level of interest rate risk
for capital procurement, and to reduce capital procurement costs over the
long term, engages in interest rate swap contracts for corporate bonds
and debt. Interest rate risk is determined through an assessment
based on the value-at-risk (VaR) method. The Company uses interest
rate swap contracts as and when necessary to fix appropriate interest rate
levels against a specified amount of future cash flow. A 1% change in
annual interest rates affects the Company’s interest payments and
bond interest by approximately ¥1.0 billion.
Note: The VaR method estimates the amount of maximum possible losses through a
simulation of future price fluctuations on relevant assets.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
As of March 31, 2003 and 2004
Millions of Yen

ASSETS

2003

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

2004

2004

Current Assets:
Cash and time deposits .................................................................................................................

¥

29,706

¥

19,998

$

189,214

Receivables:
Trade notes and accounts .......................................................................................................

113,216

Allowance for doubtful receivables...................................................................................

(731)

.............................................................................................................................................................

112,485

107,298

1,015,214

Inventories...............................................................................................................................................

27,618

31,826

301,126

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) ......................................................................................................

11,555

14,828

140,297

108,085
(787)

1,022,660
(7,446)

Other current assets..........................................................................................................................

35,432

29,928

283,168

Total current assets ......................................................................................................................

216,796

203,878

1,929,019

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies ........................................

21,598

14,556

137,723

Other (Note 3) .................................................................................................................................

61,271

98,329

930,353

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) ......................................................................................................

38,670

20,195

191,078

Other investments and other assets.......................................................................................

33,937

41,925

396,679

Allowance for doubtful receivables ........................................................................................

(2,737)

(2,985)

(28,243)

.............................................................................................................................................................

152,739

172,020

1,627,590

Production facilities...........................................................................................................................

476,242

493,383

4,668,209

Investments and Other Assets:
Investments in securities:

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost:

Distribution facilities .........................................................................................................................

1,374,106

1,443,000

13,653,137

Service and maintenance facilities ..........................................................................................

177,192

167,821

1,587,861

Other .........................................................................................................................................................

324,171

335,363

3,173,081

Construction in progress ...............................................................................................................

70,127

27,146

256,845

.............................................................................................................................................................

2,421,838

2,466,713

23,339,133

Less accumulated depreciation...........................................................................................

(1,599,658)

(1,670,893)

(15,809,376)

.............................................................................................................................................................

822,180

795,820

7,529,757

Intangibles and Deferred Assets ..............................................................................................

17,913

27,511

260,299

.............................................................................................................................................................

¥1,209,628

¥1,199,229

$11,346,665

See accompanying notes
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Millions of Yen

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2003

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

2004

2004

Current Liabilities:
Short-term loans .................................................................................................................................

¥

20,246

¥

23,190

$

219,415

Long-term debt due within one year (Note 4) ................................................................

39,824

29,859

282,515

Trade notes and accounts payable..........................................................................................

43,207

35,779

338,528

Accrued income and enterprise taxes ..................................................................................

17,542

29,767

281,644

Accrued expenses..............................................................................................................................

51,997

63,427

600,123

Other current liabilities (Note 10) .............................................................................................

73,527

70,690

668,843

Total current liabilities ...............................................................................................................

246,343

252,712

2,391,068

Long-Term Debt Due after One Year (Note 4)..................................................................

410,466

376,651

3,563,733

Employees’ Severance and Retirement Benefits (Note 9)......................................

70,585

42,889

405,800

Reserve for Repairs of Gas Holders.........................................................................................

1,639

1,531

14,486

Other Non-Current Liabilities (Note 10) ...............................................................................

19,180

21,335

201,864

Minority Interests .................................................................................................................................

8,130

8,476

80,197

and 2,369,012 thousand shares in 2003 ........................................................................

132,167

132,167

1,250,516

Capital surplus ......................................................................................................................................

19,482

19,482

184,331

Retained earnings ..............................................................................................................................

312,831

346,558

3,279,005

Net unrealized gains on securities...........................................................................................

9,825

35,903

339,701

Foreign currency translation adjustments.........................................................................

85

2,931

27,732

(391,768)

Contingent Liabilities (Note 6)
Shareholders’ Equity (Note 5):
Common stock
Authorized — 3,840,849 thousand shares in 2004
and 3,840,849 thousand shares in 2003
Issued — 2,369,012 thousand shares in 2004

Treasury stock, at cost:
138,236,978 shares in 2004 and 71,683,495 shares in 2003................................

(21,105)

(41,406)

Total shareholders’ equity........................................................................................................

453,285

495,635

4,689,517

.............................................................................................................................................................

¥1,209,628

¥1,199,229

$11,346,665
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Consolidated Statements of Income
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004
Millions of Yen

2003

Operating Revenues (Note 11) ....................................................................................................

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

2004

2004

¥947,978

¥951,324

$9,001,079

Costs ...........................................................................................................................................................

502,343

497,397

4,706,188

Selling, general and administrative expenses...................................................................

359,661

361,831

3,423,512

.............................................................................................................................................................

862,004

859,228

8,129,700

Operating Income (Note 11)..........................................................................................................

85,974

92,096

871,379

Interest and dividend income ....................................................................................................

1,290

1,205

11,401

Interest expense ..................................................................................................................................

(6,149)

(7,238)

(68,484)

Gain on sale of investment securities ....................................................................................

9,070

2,721

25,745

Costs and Expenses (Note 11):

Other Income (Expenses):

Loss on debt assumption ..............................................................................................................

—

(3,742)

(35,406)

Loss on write-down of investment securities...................................................................

(9,513)

(1,231)

(11,647)

(4,887)

(230)

(2,176)

Loss on write-down of investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates ..............................................................................................................
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment..............................................................

2,011

1,555

14,713

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment...............................................................

(11,609)

(4,684)

(44,318)

plant and equipment......................................................................................................................

(233)

(156)

(1,476)

Loss on offset against the acquisition cost of property,

Lump-sum benefits for early retirement..............................................................................

(13,295)

Other, net.................................................................................................................................................

(1,634)

(2,134)

(20,191)

.............................................................................................................................................................

(34,949)

(13,934)

(131,839)

Income before Income Taxes.......................................................................................................

51,025

78,162

739,540

Income Taxes — Current................................................................................................................

20,086

26,870

254,234

— Deferred.............................................................................................................

649

3,484

32,964

Minority Interests .................................................................................................................................

(604)

Net Income.................................................................................................................................................

¥ 29,686

—

(742)
¥ 47,066
Yen

2003
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(7,021)
$ 445,321
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

2004

2004

Net Income per Share — Basic ...................................................................................................

¥ 12.56

¥ 20.56

Cash Dividends per Share ..............................................................................................................

6.00

6.00

See accompanying notes

—

$

0.195
0.057

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004
Millions of Yen
Shares of
Common Stock
Issued
(Thousands)

Balance at March 31, 2002...............................

2,369,012

Common
Stock

¥ 132,167

Capital
Surplus

¥ 19,482

Net income...............................................................

Retained
Earnings

Net
Unrealized
Gains on
Securities

¥ 296,338

¥ 20,729

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

¥

—

(10)

(10,904)

Adjustments from translation of
foreign currency financial statements .....

85

Cash dividends (including interim
dividends) ................................................................

(14,211)

Bonuses to directors...........................................

(71)

Increase due to newly consolidated
subsidiaries..............................................................

1,631

Decrease due to a subsidiary excluded
from consolidation.............................................

(542)

Increase in treasury stock, net ......................

(21,095)
2,369,012

132,167

19,482

Net income...............................................................

312,831

9,825

85

(21,105)

47,066

Increase in net unrealized gains
on securities............................................................

26,078

Adjustments from translation of
foreign currency financial statements .....

2,846

Cash dividends (including interim
dividends) ................................................................

(13,783)

Bonuses to directors...........................................

(81)

Increase due to newly consolidated
subsidiaries..............................................................

492

Increase due to a subsidiary excluded
from consolidation.............................................

33

Increase in treasury stock, net ......................
Balance at March 31, 2004...............................

¥

29,686

Decrease in net unrealized gains
on securities............................................................

Balance at March 31, 2003...............................

Treasury
Stock, at Cost

(20,301)
2,369,012

¥132,167

¥19,482

¥346,558

¥ 35,903

¥2,931

¥(41,406)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Common
Stock

Balance at March 31, 2003...............................................................

$ 1,250,516

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Net
Unrealized
Gains on
Securities

$ 184,331

$ 2,959,892

$ 92,961

Net income...............................................................................................

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

$

804

$ (199,688)

445,321

Increase in net unrealized gains on securities....................

246,740

Adjustments from translation of
foreign currency financial statements ...................................

26,928

Cash dividends (including interim dividends) ...................

(130,409)

Bonuses to directors...........................................................................

(766)

Increase due to newly consolidated subsidiaries ............

4,655

Increase due to a subsidiary excluded
from consolidation.............................................................................

312

Increase in treasury stock, net ......................................................
Balance at March 31, 2004...............................................................

Treasury
Stock, at Cost

(192,080)
$1,250,516

$184,331

$3,279,005

$339,701

$27,732

$(391,768)

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004
Millions of Yen

2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes.......................................................................................................
Adjustments to reconcile net income before income taxes
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation.....................................................................................................................................
Decrease in employees’ retirement benefits...............................................................
Interest and dividend income...............................................................................................
Interest expense ............................................................................................................................
Loss on debt assumption.........................................................................................................
Gain on sale of investment securities...............................................................................
Loss on write-down of investment securities .............................................................
Loss on write-down of investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates.........................................................................................................
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment ........................................................
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment.........................................................
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment...............................................
Lump-sum payments for early retirement....................................................................
Decrease (increase) in receivables......................................................................................
Decrease (increase) in inventories......................................................................................
Increase (decrease) in payables ...........................................................................................
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses.......................................................................
Other.....................................................................................................................................................
Total adjustments....................................................................................................................
Interest and dividends received ..........................................................................................
Interest paid......................................................................................................................................
Lump-sum payments for early retirement....................................................................
Income and enterprise taxes paid......................................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities...............................................................

2004

¥ 51,025

2004

¥ 78,162

$ 739,540

82,805
(27,942)
(1,290)
6,149
—
(9,070)
9,513

89,564
(27,411)
(1,205)
7,238
3,742
(2,721)
1,231

847,422
(259,353)
(11,401)
68,484
35,406
(25,745)
11,647

4,887
(2,011)
11,609
2,498
12,958
(3,951)
4,557
2,944
(3,087)
3,052
93,621
1,286
(6,061)
(12,958)
(34,339)
92,574

230
(1,555)
4,684
2,155
—
1,912
(3,238)
(4,178)
9,407
(3,992)
75,863
1,230
(7,809)
—
(14,555)
132,891

2,176
(14,713)
44,318
20,390
—
18,091
(30,637)
(39,531)
89,005
(37,771)
717,788
11,638
(73,886)
—
(137,714)
1,257,366

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment.....................................................................
Purchase of intangibles...................................................................................................................
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment ............................................
Proceeds from sale of investment securities.....................................................................
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries and affiliates.................................................
Purchase of investments accompanied by change of the scope of consolidation ......................
Other...........................................................................................................................................................
Net cash used in investing activities ...........................................................................

(67,756)
(1,105)
11,678
22,945
(3,307)
(3,468)
(8,617)
(49,630)

(68,116)
(1,807)
4,502
5,522
(6,606)
—
(1,373)
(67,878)

(644,489)
(17,097)
42,596
52,247
(62,503)
—
(12,991)
(642,237)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans ...............................................................................
Net increase in commercial paper...........................................................................................
Proceeds from long-term debt ..................................................................................................
Repayment of long-term debt...................................................................................................
Proceeds from issuance of bonds ............................................................................................
Repayment of bonds........................................................................................................................
Purchase of treasury stock ............................................................................................................
Cash dividends paid..........................................................................................................................
Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders ................................................................
Other...........................................................................................................................................................
Net cash used in financing activities...........................................................................

(9,721)
9,000
5,646
(24,781)
39,970
(14,848)
(21,095)
(14,159)
(106)
—
(30,094)

3,940
2,000
44,284
(67,256)
—
(24,743)
(20,336)
(13,732)
(122)
35
(75,930)

37,279
18,923
418,999
(636,352)
—
(234,109)
(192,412)
(129,927)
(1,154)
331
(718,422)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents..................

(18)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ..........................................
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ........................................................
Cash and Cash Equivalents of Newly Consolidated Subsidiaries...................
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents by Exclusion from Consolidation..................
Cash and Cash Equivalents............................................................................................................

12,832
12,837
2,119
(1,694)
¥ 26,094

(10,846)
26,094
1,095
(599)
¥ 15,744

(102,621)
246,892
10,361
(5,668)
$ 148,964

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and time deposits in the balance sheet...................................................................
Time deposits with maturities over three months........................................................
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ........................................................................

¥ 29,706
(3,612)
¥ 26,094

¥ 19,998
(4,254)
¥ 15,744

$ 189,214
(40,250)
$ 148,964

See accompanying notes
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

71

672

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004

1BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Gas Utility Law and related regulations, the Japanese Securities and
Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
(“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards. Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
consolidated domestic subsidiaries have not adopted the new
Japanese accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets
(“Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets” issued by the Business Accounting
Deliberation Council of Japan on August 9, 2002) and the
implementation guidance for accounting standard for impairment of
fixed assets (the Financial Accounting Standard Implementation
Guidance No. 6) issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on October 31, 2003. The standard is required to be adopted in the
year ended March 31, 2006 or earlier. The Company and its
consolidated domestic subsidiaries will adopt the standard in the year
ended March 31, 2005. The effects of adopting the standard have
not been determined.
The accounts of overseas subsidiaries are based on their accounting

records maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles prevailing in the respective countries of domicile. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
restructured and translated into English (with some expanded
descriptions and the inclusion of consolidated financial statements of
shareholders’ equity) from the consolidated financial statements of
the Company prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP and filed
with the appropriate Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of
Finance as required by the Securities and Exchange Law. Some
supplementary information included in the statutory Japanese
language consolidated financial statements, but not required for fair
presentation, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars are
included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan, using
the prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2004, which was ¥105.69
to US$1. The convenience translations should not be construed as
representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have
been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or
any other rate of exchange.
Certain 2003 consolidated financial statement items have been
reclassified to conform to the presentation for 2004.

2SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) CONSOLIDATION
Companies which are owned 40% or more and substantially controlled by the Parent are considered subsidiaries and included in the
consolidation.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its 77 (56 in 2003) significant subsidiaries. Consolidation
of the remaining subsidiaries would have no material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. Intercompany
transactions and accounts have been eliminated.
The accounts of 7 consolidated subsidiaries are included on the
basis of their fiscal years which end on December 31 (February 29 for 2
other subsidiaries). These subsidiaries do not prepare, for consolidation
purposes, statements for the period which corresponds with the fiscal
year of the Company. For these 9 consolidated subsidiaries, when
there are significant transactions between their respective fiscal year ends
and the Company’s year end, necessary adjustments are made to
reflect such transactions properly in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
The difference between the cost of investments and equity in their net
assets at dates of acquisition of consolidated companies is charged or
credited to income within 20 years. If the difference isn’t significant, it
is charged or credited to income in the first year of consolidation.
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are not
accounted for by the equity method, because they are insignificant.
In the elimination of investments in subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries, including the portion attributable to
minority shareholders, are evaluated using the fair value at the time the
Company acquired control of the respective subsidiaries.
(2) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand,
readily-available deposits and short-term highly liquid investments
with maturities of not exceeding three months at the time of
purchase are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

(3) SECURITIES
Trading securities are stated at fair market value. Gains and losses
realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses from market
value fluctuations are recognized as gains or losses in the period of
the change. Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized
cost. Equity securities issued by unconsolidated subsidiaries and
affiliated companies are stated at moving-average cost. Available-forsale securities with available fair market values are stated at fair
market value. Unrealized gains and unrealized losses on these
securities are reported, net of applicable income taxes, as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Realized gains on sale of such
securities are computed using moving-average cost.
Debt securities with no available fair market value are stated at
amortized cost, net of the amount considered not collectible. Other
securities with no available fair market value are stated at movingaverage cost.
If the market value of held-to-maturity debt securities, equity
securities issued by non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, and available-for-sale securities declines significantly,
such securities are stated at fair market value and the difference
between fair market value and the carrying amount is recognized as
loss in the period of the decline. If the fair market value of equity
securities issued by such subsidiaries and affiliated companies is not
readily available, such securities should be written down to net asset
value in the event net asset value declines significantly. Unrealized
losses on these securities are reported in the income statement.
(4) DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Derivatives are stated at market value. See Note 2 (17).
(5) ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Companies”)
provide the allowance for doubtful accounts principally at an amount
computed based on the actual ratio of bad debts in the past plus the
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estimated uncollectible amounts based on the analysis of certain
individual receivables.
(6) INVENTORIES
Inventories are mainly valued at moving-average cost.
(7) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Depreciation is provided mainly on the declining-balance method
(the straight-line method by certain consolidated subsidiaries) over
estimated useful lives. However, the Company and its domestic
consolidated subsidiaries depreciate buildings acquired on or after
April 1, 1998 using the straight-line method.
Repair and maintenance expenditures, excluding gas holders, are
charged to income when incurred and major improvements are
capitalized.
Certain capital gains arising from beneficiaries’ contributions or
expropriations of property, deferral of which is permitted for tax
purposes, are offset against the acquisition cost of property
purchased. Cumulative capital gains offset against the acquisition
cost of property, plant and equipment at March 31, 2003 and 2004
were ¥279,516 million and ¥281,343 million ($2,661,964 thousand),
respectively.
(8) SOFTWARE COSTS
The Companies include software in intangible assets and depreciate
it using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives.
(9) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
The Companies charge research and development expenses to
selling, general and administrative expenses and manufacturing costs
as incurred. Research and development expenses amounted to
¥13,726 million and ¥12,379 million ($117,126 thousand) for the
years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
(10) INCOME TAXES
Income taxes comprise corporation tax, prefectural and municipal
inhabitants taxes and enterprise tax.
The Companies recognize tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tax and
financial reporting. The asset and liability approach is used to
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes.
(11) EMPLOYEES’ SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS
The Companies provide two types of post-employment benefit plans,
unfunded lump-sum payment plans and funded contributory pension
plans, under which all eligible employees are entitled to benefits
based on the level of wages and salaries at the time of retirement or
termination, length of service and certain other factors.
The Companies provide for employees’ severance and retirement
benefits based on the estimated amounts of projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of the plan assets.
Prior service costs are recognized in expenses when they arise, and
actuarial gains and losses are recognized in expenses over 10 years
commencing with the following period.
(12) BONUSES
The Companies follow the general Japanese practice of paying
bonuses to employees in June and December. Accrued bonus
liabilities at the balance sheet date are calculated based upon
management’s estimate of annual amounts thereof and included in
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accrued expenses. Bonuses to directors, which are subject to approval
at the general meeting of shareholders, are accounted for as an
appropriation of retained earnings.
(13) RESERVE FOR REPAIRS OF GAS HOLDERS
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries provide for
future repairs to gas holders by estimating future expenditures and
charging to income in equal annual amounts. The difference between
the actual expenditure and the amount provided is charged to income
in the year the repair is completed.
(14) BOND AND NOTE ISSUE EXPENSES
Bond and note issue expenses are charged to expense when incurred.
(15) ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES
Finance leases which do not transfer ownership are accounted for in
the same manner as operating leases under Japanese GAAP.
(16) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Japanese yen at the year-end rates.
Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Japanese yen at year-end rates. Shareholders’ equity is translated into
Japanese yen at the historical rates. Income and expenses are
translated into Japanese yen at interim average rates. The translation
differences arising from the use of different rates are recognized as
minority interests and foreign currency translation adjustments in the
consolidated balance sheets.
(17) DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS AND HEDGE
ACCOUNTING
The Companies state derivative financial instruments at fair value at
the end of the fiscal year and recognize changes in the fair value as
gains or losses unless derivative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes.
If derivative financial instruments are used as hedges and meet
certain hedging criteria, the Companies defer recognition of gains or
losses resulting from changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments until the related losses or gains on the hedged items are
recognized.
However, in cases where forward foreign currency exchange
contracts and currency swap contracts are used as hedges and meet
certain hedging criteria, forward foreign currency exchange contracts
and currency swap contracts and hedged items are accounted for in
the following manner:
If a forward foreign currency exchange contract or a currency swap
contract is executed to hedge an existing foreign currency receivable
or payable, the difference, if any, between the Japanese yen amount of
the hedged foreign currency receivable or payable translated using the
spot rate at the inception date of the contract and the book value of
the receivable or payable is recognized in the income statement in the
period which includes the inception date.
If a forward foreign currency exchange contract or a currency swap
contract is executed to hedge a future transaction denominated in a
foreign currency, the future transaction will be recorded using the
contracted forward rate, and no gains or losses on the forward
foreign currency exchange contract are recognized.
Also, if interest rate swap contracts are used as hedges and meet
certain hedging criteria, the net amount to be paid or received under
the interest rate swap contract is added to or deducted from the
interest on the assets or liabilities for which the swap contract was
executed.

(18) NET INCOME PER SHARE
The computations of net income per share of common stock shown
on the consolidated statements of income are based on the weightedaverage number of shares outstanding during each fiscal year.

Diluted net income per share of common stock for the years ended
March 31, 2003 and 2004 is not shown since there were no
outstanding convertible bonds or other common stock equivalents.

3SECURITIES
(1) The following tables summarize acquisition costs, book values
(fair values) of available-for-sale securities with available fair
values as of March 31, 2003 and 2004:

(3) Maturities of available-for-sale securities with maturities are as
follows:
Millions of Yen

Securities with available fair values (book values) that exceed
acquisition cost:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Acquisition Cost

Book Value

Difference

For 2003:
Equity securities.........
Bonds ...............................

¥ 13,916
1

¥ 30,304
1

¥ 16,388
—

Total...................................

¥ 13,917

¥ 30,305

¥ 16,388

Difference

For 2004:
Equity securities.........
Bonds ...............................

¥22,943
1

¥80,185
1

¥57,242
—

$541,603
—

Total...................................

¥22,944

¥80,186

¥57,242

$541,603

Securities with available fair values (book values) that do not
exceed acquisition cost:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Acquisition Cost

Book Value

Difference

Difference

For 2003:
Equity securities.........
Bonds ...............................

¥12,616
9

¥12,177
9

¥ (439)
—

Total...................................

¥12,625

¥12,186

¥ (439)

¥

95
9

¥

75
9

¥ (20)
—

$ (189)
—

¥ 104

¥

84

¥ (20)

$ (189)

For 2004:
Equity securities.........
Bonds ...............................
Total...................................

Within
One Year

Over One Year
but Within
Five Years

Over Five Years
but Within
Ten Years

Total

For 2003:
Govermental bonds
and municipal bonds..

¥9

¥1

¥ —

¥ 10

Total.................................

¥9

¥1

¥ —

¥ 10

For 2004:
Govermental bonds
and municipal bonds..

¥9

¥1

¥ —

¥ 10

Total.................................

¥9

¥1

¥ —

¥ 10

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Within
One Year

Over One Year
but Within
Five Years

Over Five Years
but Within
Ten Years

For 2004:
Govermental bonds
and municipal bonds..

$ 85

$ 10

$ —

$ 95

Total.................................

$ 85

$ 10

$ —

$ 95

Total

(4) Total sales of available-for-sale securities in the year ended
March 31, 2003 and 2004 amounted to ¥22,945 million and
¥5,522 million ($52,247 thousand) and the related gains and
losses amounted to ¥9,070 million and ¥2,721 million ($25,745
thousand) and ¥1,280 million and ¥276 million ($2,611
thousand), respectively.

(2) The following table summarizes book values of available-for-sale
securities with no available fair values as of March 31, 2003 and
2004:
Millions of Yen

2003

Non-listed (non quoted)
equity securities ...............................................

2004

¥18,780 ¥18,059

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

$170,868
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4LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at March 31, 2003 and 2004 consisted of the
following:
Millions of Yen

2003

2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

Loans principally from banks and
insurance companies, principally
at 0.17%–5,850%, maturing serially
through 2019.............................................................. ¥210,410 ¥187,630 $1,775,286
5.875% notes payable in Euroyen
due 2012 .............................................................. 10,000
—
—
2.95% notes payable due 2005 ............... 15,000
15,000
141,924
3.4% notes payable due 2017.................. 15,700
15,700
148,547
7.125% bonds payable in U.S. dollars
due 2007 .............................................................. 48,960
48,960
463,241
2.9% notes payable due 2018.................. 30,000
29,000
274,387
1.47% notes payable due 2008 ............... 30,000
30,000
283,849
1.95% notes payable due 2009 .............. 20,000
20,000
189,233
1.23% notes payable due 2005 ............... 20,000
20,000
189,233
2.06% notes payable due 2007 ..............
220
220
2,082
0.675% notes payable due 2004 ........... 10,000
—
—
1.46% notes payable due 2012 .............. 20,000
20,000
189,233
1.47% notes payable due 2022 .............. 20,000
20,000
189,233
............................................................................... 450,290
Less amounts due within one year....... 39,824

406,510
29,859

3,846,248
282,515

............................................................................... ¥410,466 ¥376,651 $3,563,733

In the year ended March 31, 1999, the Company entered into debt
assumption agreements with banks for 5.45% notes payable due 2004
(¥20,000 million).
In the year ended March 31, 2000, the Company entered into debt
assumption agreements with banks for loans from banks (¥11,972
million due through the year ended March 31, 2010).
In the year ended March 31, 2002, the Company ended into debt

assumption agreements with banks for 2.95% notes payable due 2005
(¥33,900 million) and loans from banks (¥6,835 million due through
the year ended March 31, 2010).
In the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company entered into debt
assumption agreements with banks for 5.875% notes payable in
Euroyen due 2012 (¥10,000 million).
However, the Company remains contingently liable on the
amounts assumed by the banks.
Assets pledged as collateral mainly for short-term loans and longterm debt totaling ¥37,834 million and ¥34,794 million ($329,208
thousand) at March 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively, were as follows:
Millions of Yen

2003

2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

Property, plant and equipment .............
Cash and time deposits ..............................
Accounts receivable......................................
Inventories and others.................................

¥63,274 ¥60,281
2,053
2,035
802
515
690
841

$570,357
19,254
4,873
7,957

..............................................................................

¥66,819 ¥63,672

$602,441

The annual maturities of long-term debt are as follows at March 31,
2004:
Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2005.............................................................................
2006.............................................................................
2007.............................................................................
2008.............................................................................
2009.............................................................................
2010 and thereafter...........................................

¥ 29,859
53,165
63,138
36,967
42,941
180,440

$ 282,515
503,028
597,388
349,768
406,292
1,707,257

Total.............................................................................

¥406,510

$3,846,248

Years ending March 31,

5SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Under the Commercial Code of Japan, the entire amount of the issue
price of shares is required to be accounted for as capital, although a
company may, by resolution of its board of directors, account for an
amount not exceeding one-half of the issue price of the new shares as
additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.
The Commercial Code provides that an amount equal to at least
10% of cash dividends and other cash appropriations shall be
appropriated and set aside as a legal earnings reserve until the total
amount of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital equals
25% of common stock. The legal earnings reserve and additional
paid-in capital may be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit by
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resolution of the stockholders’ meeting or may be capitalized by
resolution of the board of directors. On condition that the total
amount of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital
remains to be equal to or to exceeds 25% of common stock, they are
available for distribution by the resolution of shareholders’ meeting.
Legal earnings reserve is included in retained earnings in the
accompanying financial statements.
The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as
dividends is calculated based on the non-consolidated financial
statements of the Company in accordance with the Commercial
Code.

6CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2003 and 2004, the Companies were contingently
liable as follows:

Millions of Yen

As guarantor of indebtedness of:
Non-consolidated subsidiaries
and affiliates.............................................
Employees .................................................
Debt assumption agreements ..........
..........................................................................

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2003

2004

2004

¥ 2,631
211
121,454

¥ 2,926
157
82,707

$ 27,685
1,485
782,543

¥124,296 ¥85,790

$811,713

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

7FINANCE LEASES
Information for non-capitalized finance leases at March 31, 2003
and 2004 is as follows:

As lessor

As lessee (non-capitalized)

2003
Millions of Yen

2003

Original lease obligations
(including finance charges).....................

¥5,142

2004

¥3,904

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

Original cost .......................................................
Less accumulated depreciation.............

2004

2004

¥12,229 ¥13,450
6,829
8,009

$127,259
75,778

Total ...................................................................

¥ 5,400

¥ 5,441

$ 51,481

Receipts remaining:
Receipts due within one year............
Receipts due over one year ................

¥ 2,508
4,904

¥ 2,694
5,480

$ 25,489
51,850

Total ...................................................................

¥ 7,412

¥ 8,174

$ 77,339

$36,938

Payments remaining:
Payments due within one year.........
Payments due over one year .............

¥ 740
1,413

¥ 620
1,328

$ 5,866
12,565

Total ...................................................................

¥2,153

¥1,948

$18,431

Lease payments for such leases for the years ended March 31,
2003 and 2004 were ¥1,093 million and ¥1,063 million ($10,058
thousand), respectively.

Lease receipts under such leases for the years ended March 31,
2003 and 2004 were ¥2,957 million and ¥3,023 million ($28,603
thousand), respectively.
Depreciation for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 were
¥1,854 million and ¥1,857 million ($17,570 thousand), respectively.

8DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
The Companies use forward foreign currency contracts, currency
swaps, interest rate swaps, material price swap contracts and options and
weather derivatives as derivative financial instruments only for the
purpose of mitigating future risks of fluctuations of foreign currency
exchange rates with respect to foreign currency payables for the purchase
of materials and foreign currency bonds and loans payable, interest
rate increases with respect to borrowings within the amounts of such
borrowings or foreign currency payables, fluctuations of material
prices and fluctuations in gas sales.
These derivatives are subject to risks of foreign exchange rate
changes, interest rate changes, material price fluctuations and temperature changes, respectively.
The Companies’ derivative transactions are executed and managed by the Companies’ Finance Departments in accordance with
the established policies and within the specified limit on the amounts of
derivative transactions allowed.

The following summarizes hedging derivative financial instruments used by the Companies and items hedged:
Hedging instruments:
Interest rate swap contracts
Currency swap contracts
Forward foreign exchange
contracts and currency options
Material and other price swap
contracts and options

Hedged items:
Interest on bonds and loans
payable
Foreign currency bonds and
loans payable
Foreign currency future
purchases
Purchase cost of materials
and other

The Companies evaluate hedge effectiveness by recognizing the
association of hedging instruments and hedged items.

49

The following table summarizes market value information as of March 31, 2003 of derivative transactions for which hedge accounting has
not been applied:
Millions of Yen

For 2003

Items not traded
on exchanges

Type

Notional Amount

Over One Year

Market Value

Recognized Gains
or Losses

Interest rate swaps:
Pay variable, receive fixed.................................................................
Pay fixed, receive variable.................................................................

¥2,962
2,798

¥2,962
2,548

¥129
(77)

¥129
(77)

Total ...............................................................................................................

¥5,760

¥5,510

¥ 52

¥ 52

All derivative transactions as of March 31, 2004 are recorded by hedge accounting.

9EMPLOYEES’ SEVERANCE AND PENSION BENEFITS
The liabilities for severance and retirement benefits included in the
liability section of the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31,
2003 and 2004 consist of the following:
Millions of Yen

2003

Projected benefit obligation.....................
Prepaid pension expenses .........................
Less unrecognized actuarial
differences...........................................................
Less fair value of pension assets .............
Liability for severance and
retirement benefits.................................

2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

¥ 276,175 ¥ 286,310
180
673

$ 2,708,960
6,368

(45,349)
(7,657)
(160,421) (236,437)

(72,448)
(2,237,080)

¥ 70,585 ¥ 42,889

$ 405,800

Included in the consolidated statement of income for the years
ended March 31, 2003 and 2004 are severance and retirement benefit
expenses comprised of the following:

Millions of Yen

Service costs —
benefits earned during the year ..........
Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation..........................................
Expected return on plan assets..............
Actuarial gains and losses..........................
Prior service costs ...........................................
Severance and retirement
benefit expenses......................................

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2003

2004

2004

¥10,733

¥ 8,514

$ 80,556

7,304
(4,126)
2,471
(1,831)

4,901
(2,869)
4,941
71

¥14,551 ¥15,558

46,371
(27,145)
46,750
672
$147,204

The discount rate and the rate of expected return on plan assets
used by the Company are mainly 1.8% and 2.7% in the year ended
March 31, 2003 and 1.8% and 1.8% in the year ended March 31,
2004, respectively. The estimated amount of all retirement benefits to
be paid at future retirement dates is allocated equally to each service
year using the estimated number of total service years. Prior service
costs are recognized as incurred and actuarial gains/losses are
recognized as an expense in equal amounts over 10 years.

0INCOME TAXES
The Company is subject to a number of taxes based on income,
which, in the aggregate, indicate statutory rates in Japan of
approximately 36.2%, in case of the Company (40.6% for certain
consolidated subsidiaries) for the years ended March 31, 2003 and
2004.
The following table summarizes the significant differences
between the statutory tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rates
for financial statement purposes for the years ended March 31, 2003
and 2004:
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2003

2004

Statutory tax rate..............................................................

36.2%

36.2%

Statutory tax rate difference between
the Company and certain subsidiaries..............
Non-deductible expenses ..........................................
Per capita inhabitant tax..............................................
Other........................................................................................

1.4
1.6
0.4
1.0

1.0
1.2
0.2
0.2

Effective tax rate ..............................................................

40.6%

38.8%

Significant components of the Companies’ deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of March 31, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:
Millions of Yen

2003

Deferred tax assets:
Retirement benefits.................................
Excess depreciation .................................
Loss on cancellation of
construction plan.....................................
Write-down of securities ......................
Unrealized gains ........................................
Enterprise taxes ..........................................
Other.................................................................
Total deferred tax assets .............................
Valuation allowance ................................

2004

¥ 16,915 ¥ 10,381
12,346 11,871

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

$ 98,221
112,319

7,089
5,251
1,954
3,095
16,682
56,323
(478)

67,073
49,683
18,488
29,284
157,839
532,907
(4,522)

Net deferred tax assets................................

59,358

55,845

528,385

Deferred tax liabilities:
Special reserve for tax purposes..........
Deferred gains on real properties ..........
Net unrealized gains on securities...........
Other.................................................................

(4,855) (4,642)
(356)
(344)
(6,165) (21,285)
(1,422) (1,404)

(43,921)
(3,255)
(201,391)
(13,284)

Total deferred tax liabilities .......................

(12,798) (27,675)

(261,851)

¥ 46,560 ¥ 28,170

Millions of Yen

2003

2004

3,750
8,752
2,472
2,856
12,285
59,376
(18)

Net deferred tax assets ...............................

Net deferred tax assets are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets as follows:

$ 266,534

2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2004

Current assets....................................................
Investments and other assets .................
Other current liabilities................................
Other non-current liabilities.....................

¥ 11,555 ¥ 14,828
38,670 20,195
(9)
(12)
(3,656) (6,841)

$ 140,297
191,078
(114)
(64,727)

..............................................................................

¥ 46,560 ¥ 28,170

$ 266,534

The aggregate statutory income tax rate used for calculation of
deferred income tax assets and liabilities was 42.0% for the year
ended March 31, 2002. Effective for years commencing on April 1,
2004 or later, according to the revised local tax law, income tax rates
for enterprise taxes will be reduced as a result of introducing the
assessment by estimation on the basis of the size of business. Based
on the change of income tax rates, for calculation of deferred income
tax assets and liabilities, certain consolidated domestic subsidiaries
used the aggregate statutory income tax rates of 42.0% and 40.5% for
current items and non-current items, respectively, at March 31, 2003.
As a result of the change in the aggregate statutory at March 31,
2003 income tax rates, deferred income tax assets increased by ¥16
million and provision for deferred income taxes increased by ¥130
million and net unrealized gains on securities increased by ¥146
million compared with what would have been recorded under the
previous local tax law.

-SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company’s primary business activities include (1) Gas (2) LPG,
Electricity and Other Energies (3) Gas Appliances and House-Pipe
Installation (4) Real Estate (5) Others.
Changes in the Classification of Business Segments
Since the introduction of INNOVATION CENTENNIAL, a
medium-term management plan, greater stress has been placed on
enhancing the ability of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and other core companies to offer quality energy services and non-energy services, the
two main businesses of the Group. Under the plan, organizational
reforms were implemented on April 1, 2003, and accordingly, the
business segments were reclassified to properly present segment disclosure in the Group’s two main businesses (Energy Businesses and
Non-Energy Businesses) as shown below.
• The electric supply, thermal energy supply, LNG processing, etc.
businesses previously included in the “Others” segment and the
LPG and Industrial Gas businesses, were combined into the “LPG,
Electricity and Other Energies” business segment.
• The road piping works, recycling of excavated soil, etc. businesses
previously included in “Others,” and the “Gas Appliances” and
“House-Pipe Installation,” were combined into the “Gas Appliances and House-Pipe Installation” businesses segment.
• The building management/maintenance business and other
businesses, previously included in “Others,” segment and “Real
Estate Lease,” business were combined into the “Real Estate”
business segment.
Changes in the treatment of operating expenses and corporate assets
included under “Elimination and Corporate” are as follows:
The operating expenses included under “Elimination and

Corporate” mainly comprised general expenses related to the
administrative departments of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. However, with
the organizational reforms implemented on April 1, 2003 under the
INNOVATION CENTENNIAL medium-term management plan,
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. was first given the status of corporate head
office serving the entire Group and there was an examination into
how the non-allocable operating expenses accrued and how those
expenses related to each business segment. As a result of the
examination, it was agreed that the non-allocable operating expenses
would be treated as direct expenses for each segment, because doing
so would better present the profit/loss information of each segment.
There was also a reexamination of the corporate assets related to the
administrative departments of the consolidated companies, which
were included in the “Elimination and Corporate,” to determine how
those assets affected the performance of each business segment. The
conclusion was reached that corporate assets excluding investment in
securities, etc. had significantly contributed to the performance of
each of the business segments, and should be treated as the assets of
each segment. Following the allocation of the corporate assets to
each business segment, depreciation expenses and capital
expenditures were also allocated to each segment accordingly.
The effects of these changes for the year ended March 31, 2004 are
as follows:
• Operating expenses:
Operating expenses under “Elimination and Corporate” decreased
by ¥76,915 million ($727,742 thousand).
• Assets:
Assets under “Elimination and Corporate” decreased by ¥76,252
million ($721,468 thousand).
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• Depreciation expenses:
Depreciation expense in “Elimination and Corporate” decreased by
¥2,839 million ($26,862 thousand).

• Capital expenditures:
Capital expenditures in “Elimination and Corporate” decreased by
¥924 million ($8,742 thousand).

A summary of segment information is as follows:
Millions of Yen

LPG, Electricity
and Other
Energies

Gas Appliances
and House-Pipe
Installation

Real
Estate

Elimination
and
Corporate

For 2003
Operating revenues:
Outside customers............................................
Inside group..........................................................

¥566,998
4,030

¥118,006
1,602

¥151,426
329

¥ 14,801
18,668

¥ 96,747
35,438

¥ 947,978
60,067

¥
—
(60,067)

¥ 947,978
—

.......................................................................................
Cost and expenses..................................................

571,028
513,980

119,608
106,441

151,755
149,815

33,469
27,085

132,185
125,863

1,008,045
923,184

(60,067)
(61,180)

947,978
862,004

Operating income...................................................

¥ 57,048

¥ 13,167

¥ 1,940

¥ 6,384

¥ 6,322

¥

84,861

¥ 1,113

¥

Identifiable assets ....................................................
Depreciation...............................................................
Capital expenditure................................................

¥717,200
61,008
44,591

¥159,451
8,949
4,836

¥ 79,852
862
1,359

¥102,826
4,622
7,119

¥128,502
8,450
10,049

¥1,187,831
83,891
67,954

¥ 21,797
(1,086)
(847)

¥1,209,628
82,805
67,107

Gas Appliances
and House-Pipe
Installation

Gas

Others

Total

Consolidated

85,974

Millions of Yen

For 2004
Operating revenues:
Outside customers............................................
Inside group..........................................................

Gas

LPG, Electricity
and Other
Energies

¥568,047
5,856

¥130,671
1,499

¥143,164
397

¥ 13,745
20,153

.......................................................................................
Cost and expenses..................................................

573,903
515,860

132,170
116,429

143,561
141,330

33,898
26,820

Operating income...................................................

¥ 58,043

¥ 15,741

¥ 2,231

¥

Identifiable assets ....................................................
Depreciation...............................................................
Capital expenditure................................................

¥676,782
64,778
47,234

¥172,638
11,772
7,860

¥ 69,145
793
676

¥102,526
4,503
4,085

LPG, Electricity
and Other
Energies

Gas Appliances
and House-Pipe
Installation

Real
Estate

7,078

Others

Total

¥ 95,697 ¥ 951,324
40,318
68,223
136,015
128,529
¥

7,486 ¥

1,019,547
928,968
90,579

¥115,158 ¥1,136,249
8,674
90,520
10,320
70,175

Elimination
and
Corporate

Consolidated

¥
— ¥ 951,324
(68,223)
—
(68,223)
(69,740)
¥ 1,517

951,324
859,228
¥

92,096

¥ 62,980 ¥1,199,229
(956)
89,564
(395)
69,780

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

For 2004
Gas
Operating revenues:
Outside customers............................................ $5,374,652 $1,236,361 $1,354,566
Inside group..........................................................
55,408
14,183
3,756
.......................................................................................
Cost and expenses..................................................

5,430,060
4,880,878

1,250,544
1,101,608

1,358,322
1,337,213

Operating income................................................... $ 549,182 $ 148,936

$

Identifiable assets .................................................... $6,403,463 $1,633,437
Depreciation...............................................................
612,906
111,382
Capital expenditure................................................
446,911
74,368

$ 654,225
7,503
6,396

21,109

Real
Estate

$130,050
190,680

Others

Total

$ 905,450 $ 9,001,079
381,474
645,501

320,730
253,761
$ 66,969 $

1,286,924
1,216,094
70,830 $

Elimination
and
Corporate

$
— $ 9,001,079
(645,501)
—

9,646,580
8,789,554

(645,501)
(659,854)

857,026

$ 14,353

$970,063 $1,089,583 $10,750,771
42,606
82,070
856,467
38,651
97,644
663,970

Consolidated

9,001,079
8,129,700
$

871,379

$595,894 $11,346,665
(9,045)
847,422
(3,737)
660,233

Geographic segment information is not disclosed due to operations outside Japan being not material compared to consolidated net sales and
assets. Information for overseas sales is not disclosed due to overseas sales being not material compared to consolidated net sales.

=SUBSEQUENT EVENT
At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of the Company held on June 29, 2004, year end dividends of ¥3.0 per share for a total of ¥6,692
million ($63,317 thousand) were approved.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
OSAKA GAS CO., LTD.
March 31, 2003 and 2004

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and
2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, expressed in Japanese yen.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to independently express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, which states that on April 1, 2003, Osaka
Gas Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries have changed the classification of business segments and the treatment of non-allocable operating
expenses and corporate assets.
The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2004 are presented solely
for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been
made on the basis described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Osaka, Japan
June 29, 2004
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ORGANIZATION (As of July 1, 2004)

Energy Resources Business Unit

Pipeline Business Unit

Business Units

LNG Terminal & Power Generation Business Unit

Residential Energy Business Unit

Board of
Directors

Commercial & Industrial Energy Business Unit

Chairman/
President/
xecutive Vice
Presidents

Liquid Gas Co., Ltd.
Nissho Petroleum Gas Corporation

Executive
Board

CCorporate
p
Auditors/
Board of
Corporate
p
Auditors

Kinrei Co., Ltd.
OGIS Research Institute Co., Ltd.

Corporate
Auditors’
Office

Core Companies

Urbanex Co., Ltd.

Osaka Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd.
OG Capital Co., Ltd.
Strategy & Finance Division
Corporate Strategy Dept./Accounting & Planning Dept.
Finance Dept./Accounting & Tax Services Center/
IR Office

Secretariat/Corporate Communication Dept.
Human Resources Dept. /Research Institute for Culture,
Energy and Life Health Services Center

Administration & General Affairs Division
General Affairs Dept. /Compliance Dept.
Legal Dept. /Auditing Dept./Environment Dept.
Purchasing Services Center

Technology Division
Technology Planning Dept./Energy Technology
Laboratories/Engineering Dept./Information &
Communication Systems Dept./Advanced Material
Business Promotion Dept./Residential Cogeneration
Development Dept.

Tokyo Division
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Tokyo Branch

Group Headquarters and Shared Service Centers

Communication & HR Division

LIST OF MAJOR CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES (As of March 31, 2004)

Name of Subsidiary

Gas

Capital (million yen)

Osaka Gas Shareholding (%)

100

85

Nabari Kintetsu Gas Co., Ltd.

• Sales of natural gas, simplified gas, LPG, auto gas and gas appliances, and design and installation of piping

Osaka Gas International Transport Inc.

3,190

100

450

100

• Vessel leasing

Gas and Power Co., Ltd.

• Electric power supply • Prospecting, development, production and supply of petroleum and natural gas
• Investment in energy infrastructure • Energy environmental service
• Research and planning relating to the above-mentioned businesses

Gas and Power Investment Co., Ltd.

2,100

100

• Domestic and overseas energy businesses, and research, planning, development and investment relating to these businesses

LPG, Electricity and Other Energies

Cogen Techno Service Co., Ltd.

400

56

1,030

100

300

95

450

95

1,726

70

60

100

A$157 million

100

• Design, installation and sale of cogeneration systems and service by contract
• Processing of electric power and cold/hot air by contract

Liquid Gas Co., Ltd.
• Manufacture, sale and transport of LNG and high-pressure gases
• Sale of cold air generated from LNG production and sale of LPG

Nakayama Joint Power Generation Co.,Ltd.
• Electric power supply

Nakayama Nagoya Joint Power Generation Co., Ltd.
• Electric power supply

Nissho Petroleum Gas Corporation
• Import and sale of LPG

Nissho Propane Sekiyu Co., Ltd.
• Sale of LPG, gas appliances and petroleum

Osaka Gas Australia Pty. Ltd.

• Mining of crude oil, natural gas and other mineral resources and their development, production and sales

21 other companies

Enetech Kyoto Co., Ltd.

30

100

• Design, installation, operation, maintenance and sale of air-conditioning, water supply • Drainage, hot water supply,
ventilation and kitchen facilities and equipment • Design and performance of piping work and electric work

Gas Appliances and
House-Pipe Installation

Enetech Osaka Co., Ltd.

20

100

• Design, installation, operation, maintenance and sale of air-conditioning, water supply
• Drainage, hot water supply, ventilation and kitchen facilities and equipment

Hearts Co., Ltd.

85

98.8

• Sales and repair of gas appliances, gas works, piping works and house refurbishment

Kinpai Co., Ltd.

300

100

• Gas piping works • Construction work and road paving • Sales and installation of housing equipment
• Piping renewal work

11 other companies
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Name of Subsidiary

OSC Engineering Co., Ltd.

Capital (million yen)

Osaka Gas Shareholding (%)

50

67.3

• Maintenance, security service, and cleaning of buildings and facility designing and construction

Urbanex Co., Ltd.

1,570

100

• Management, maintenance and leasing of real estate • Surveys and research on urban development

Real Estate Leasing

OG Capital Co., Ltd.

3,000

100

• Management control of affiliated companies • Management, maintenance and leasing of real estate

Serendi Co., Ltd.

100

100

• Management of real estate and operation and management of parking lots
• Sale of office automation equipment and related products
• Domestic tourist bureau, travel agency
• Staffing and placement services • Office service and business service • Billing service

Kyoto Research Park Co., Ltd.

100

100

• Management of the Research Park, interchange between the industrial and academic societies, development of venture businesses

4 other companies

Osaka Gas Engineering Co., Ltd.

100

100

• Investigation, design, installation and technical consulting for gas facilities, facilities using cold air
and facilities for environmental protection • Investigation, purchase and sale of industrial properties

Osaka Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd.

480

100

450

100

• Manufacture and sale of coke, chemical products and carbon products

Osaka Gas Housing Equipment Co., Ltd.

• Sale of housing equipment • Design and performance of installation work of housing equipment • Sale of kitchen utensils
• Construction of new housing and renovation of housing

Osaka Gas Security Service Co., Ltd.

100

100

• Provision of security and disaster protection services • Maintenance and inspection of gas facilities and equipment
• Sale, lease, installation, maintenance and inspection of security and disaster protection equipment
• Sale of home security systems

Others

Active Life Inc.

900

76.7

• Operation and management of nursing homes for the aged • Provision of home healthcare services
• Health consulting service • Consulting on the operation of housing for the aged and nursing facilities

OG Sports, Co., Ltd.

100

100

• Management, construction and operation of sports facilities and resort facilities • Sale of sports goods

OGIS Research Institute Co., Ltd.

400

100

• Computer data processing services • Sale of computer-related equipment and software • Software development
• Provision of computer education

OGIC Co., Ltd.

600

100

• Leasing • Consumer credit • Telemarketing • Life and property insurance agency • Automatic collection service
• Land and building dealer

Kinrei Co., Ltd.
• Operation of restaurants • Manufacture and sale of frozen foods

12 other companies
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966

74.8

DIRECTORY (As of June 29, 2004)
Head Office
4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0046 Japan
Tel: (06) 6205-4715 IR office

OVERSEAS REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES
London Office
3rd Floor, Mutual House, Conduit Street, London W1R 9TQ, U.K.
Tel: (207) 287-8606

Tokyo Office
Shin-Otemachi Building 6F
2-2-1, Otemachi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004 Japan
Tel: (03) 3211-2551

New York Rep. Office
375 Park Avenue, Suite 2109, New York, NY 10152, U.S.A.
Tel: (212) 980-1666

INVESTOR INFORMATION
Date of Establishment:
April 10, 1897

Independent Certified Public Accountants:
KPMG AZSA & Co.

Regular General Meeting:
The regular general meeting of shareholders is held in June each year.
The 2004 Regular General Meeting was held on June 29.
Common Stock:
Authorized:
3,840,849 thousand shares
Issued:
2,369,012 thousand shares

Transfer Agent:
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-10, Nikko-cho, Fuchu-City, Tokyo 183-8701, Japan
Tel: (06) 6833-4700
(0423) 51-2211
The Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. Internet Web site contains information
provided for all investors and is constantly updated.

Listing of Shares:
Osaka Gas’s shares are listed for trading on the following stock
exchanges in Japan:
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya

The address of the Osaka Gas Co., Ltd. Web site is:
http://www.osakagas.co.jp

Number of Shareholders:
205,751

For inquiries about this report or requests for other materials,
please refer to the contacts listed below:

Stock Transaction Units:
The Company’s stock is traded in units of 1,000 shares.

Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.
IR office
TEL: (06) 6205-4715
FAX: (06) 6202-4637
E-mail: keiri@osakagas.co.jp

Common Stock Price Range (Yen)
(Tokyo Stock Exchange)
FY2003
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

FY2004

High

Low

High

Low

311
298
302
316

276
280
271
281

346
325
308
316

297
291
281
292

UNIT CONVERSION LIST
Volume (Gas)

Weight
kg

Metric ton

Imperial (short) ton

U.S. (long) ton

m3 (n)

m3 (s)

SCF

1
1,000
1,016.0
907.19

1 × 10
1
1.0160
0.9072

0.984 × 10
0.9842
1
0.8927

1.102 × 10
1.1023
1.1200
1

1
0.9476
0.0268

1.055
1
0.0283

37.33
35.37
1

m

ft

yard

mile

1
0.3048
0.9144
1,609

3.2808
1
3
5,280

1.0936
0.333
1
1,760

0.622 × 10-3
0.189 × 10-3
0.568 × 10-3
1

m3 (S)

ft

Imperial gallon

U.S. gallon

1
28.32 × 10-3
4.55 × 10-3
3.78 × 10-3

35.315
1
0.1606
0.1337

219.97
6.288
1
0.8327

264.17
7.481
1.2011
1

-3

-3

-3

Length

n:0˚C, S: 15˚C, SCF:101.33kPa, 15.5˚C (60˚F)

Energy
Z

Btu

MJ

3.969
1
948.2
3,414

4.186 × 10
1.055 × 10-3
1
3.600

Z/m3 (n)

Btu/SCF

MJ/m3 (s)

1
9.406
252.1

0.1063
1
26.81

3.97 × 10-3
3.73 × 10-3
1

1
0.2520
238.9
860.1

kWh

-3

Volume (Liquid)

1S = 6.29 barrel; 1 barrel (42 U.S. gallons) = 0.159S

Heating Value (Gas)

1 ton of LNG = 13 ¥ 10 6 Z = 52 ¥ 10 6 Btu

1.162 × 10-3
0.2929 × 10-3
0.2778
1

Osaka Gas Co., Ltd.
IR office
4-1-2, Hiranomachi, Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0046, Japan
Tel: (06) 6205-4715
Fax: (06) 6202-4637
Homepage: http://www.osakagas.co.jp
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